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1. Acronyms and Glossary of Terms

IFRS
MD
NT
Py
PSASB
KIE
MSMEs
BETA
aDpP
GOK
BAS

. DFY
SDG
PWD
CSR
SMEs
TAT
FY
Kice
~hD
MBS
CPrA
Cs

International Financial Reporting Standards
Muanaging Director

National Treuasury

Public Finance Management.
Public Sector Accounting Standards Board
Kenya industrial Estates

Micro, Small and Medium Linterprises
Bottom Up Economic Transformation Agenda
Gross Domestic Product

Government of Kenya

Business Advisory Services

Development Finance Institution
Sustainable Development Goal

Persons Living with Disabilities

Corporate Social Responsibility

Small and Medium Enterprises

Turn Around Time

Financial Year

Kenyatta International Conference Centre
Doctor of Philosophy

Member of Burning Spear

Certified Public Accountani

Certified Secretary
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2. Key Entity Information

(a) Background information

Kenya Industrial Estates Itd was established as a Limited Liability Company under the
Companies Act in 1967. At cabinet level. the company is represented by the Cabinet Secretary
for Cooperatives and Micro Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) Development, who is
responsible for the general policy and strategic direction of the company. The entity is domicile
in Kenya.

(b) Principal Activities

The principal activity of the company is to promote and facilitate industrialisation through the
provision of credit facilities, business advisory services and industrial work spaces.

Vision

To lead in the development of vibrant and sustainable Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
in Kenya.

Mission

To empower MSMEs in value addition by providing industrial incubation, affordable finance,
and business advisory services to support industrialization for job and wealth creation (in
Kenya).

Core Values
The Company upholds the following values:
*  Integrity
*  Professionalism
*  Equity
*  Accountability
Acronym: IPEA

{(¢) Directors

The Board of Directors is appointed in line with the Provisions of section 6 of the State
Corporations Act (Chapter 446) Laws of Kenya.,
The provisions of section 6 provide that the Board shali comprise of:
a) A Chairman appointed by the President who shall be non-executive unless the
President otherwise directs;
b) The ChiefExecutive;
¢) The Principal Secretary of the Parent Ministry;
d) The Principal Secretary to the National Treasury; and
) Not more than seven other members not being employees of the state corporation, of
whom not more than three shall be public officers, appointed by the Cabinet
Secretary.
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The appointment is by name and by notice in the Gazetie and is for a renewable period of
three years or for such shorter period as may be specified in the notice.

‘The Directors who served the entity during the period were as follows:

No | Name Position Date of Appointment

1 | Lily Ng’ok Chairman Appointed on 10/2/2023

2 | Dr. Parmain ole Narikae, | Managing Appointed on 5/9/2016

PhD, MBS Director

3 | Ahmed Jibril Director Appointed on 26/5/2023

4 | Emma Wangari Wainaina | Director Appointed on 26/5/2023

5 | Patricia Chelimo Director Appointed on 26/5/2023

6 | Rakesh Kumar Bvats Director Appointed on 26/5/2023

7 | Antony Kaara Director Appointed on 26/5/2023

8 | Alex Wafula Wamalwa Director Appointed on 24/3/2023

9 | Nicholas Kainau Director Appointed on 29/4/2021

10 | Muthoni Kimani Chairperson Appointed on 6/10/2021 and left on
10/2/2023

11 | Alvin Kibet Director Appointed on 05/08/2022 and left on
24/03/2023

12 | Ruth Ngobi Director Appointed on 05/8/2022 and left on
26/5/2023

13 | Parveen Sigei Director Appointed on 05/8/2022 and left on
26/5/2023

14 | Eng. Elizabeth Odhiambo | Director Appointed on 05/8/2022 and left on
26/5/2023

15 | Anastasia Kamau Director Appointed on 05/8/2022 and left on

26/5/2023

(d)Manager-Legal Services & Company Secretary

Ms. Charity Ndeke
P.O. Box 78029-00507
Nairobi.

(e) Registered Officer
KIE Building

Likoni/ Lusingeti road
P.O. Box 78029-00507
Nairobi, KENYA
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(f) Corporate Headquarters
P.O. Box 78029-00507

KIE Limited Building
Likoni/ Lusingeti Road
Nairobi, KENYA

(g) Corporate Contacts
Telephone: (254) -20-651348-54
E-mail: admin@kie.go.ke
Website: www kie co.ke

(h) Corporate Bankers
1.

National Bank of Kenya Lid
Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 72866-00200
Nairobi, Kenya

Kenya Commercial Bank 1t
P.O Box 48400-00100

Nairobi, Kenya

Standard Chartered Bani Kenya Ltd
P. Box 30001-00100

Nairobi, Kenya

Cooperative Bank of Kenya Ltd
P.O Box 48231-00100

Nairobi, Kenya

(i) Independent Auditors
Auditor-General

The Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

(ii) Principal Legal Advisers

The Attorney General

State Law Office and Department of Justice
Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya
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3. The Board of Directors

Her Excellency Lily Ng’ok

Hon Lily C. Ng’ok is a strong and firm leader with rich
experience in various leadership positions.
She is the Immediate Former Deputy Governor, Kericho
County and also the county Minister for Education. In the
County, she impacted greatly on the service delivery and
transformation of education in the county.

She is a seasoned educationist having served as dean of
students and lecturer at the Kisii University where she
contributed immensely to the development of the
University.

Her excellency lily Ng’ok also has had a celebrated
teaching career in various high schools in Kenya. She has
also served in other responsible positions including Board
Chair and Board member in many schools.

She is engaged in various Community activities including
sponsoring over 83 high school students and currently
sponsoring 30 students, a women leader leading operation
okoa mlevi in Bureti Constituency, supporting vulnerable
single women. She has also participated in church
activities in the women Ministry of SDA church in the
Kericho County.

She is also well travelled having visited countries like the
USA, Canada, China, Australia, south Aftica, Nigeria,
Egypt and all the East Africa Countries.

Hon. Ng’ok Holds a Masters Degree (Arts) from the
Northwestern University, USA and a Bachelors Degree
Arts (Education) from Egerton University. She is also
pursuing her PhD studies.

She is married with three children.

She is a non-executive Chairperson

Date of birth 1* January , 1973

Chairperson  Board  of
Directors

Hon. Susan Mang'eni

Principal Secretary

State  Department  for  Micro,

Small, and Medium Enterprises
Development

Hon. Susan Auma Mang'eni is a distinguished Public
servant and an advocate for the empowerment of
micro, small, and medium enterprises (MSMEs).
With a deep commitment to driving economic growth
and fostering entrepreneurship, she currently serves
as the Principal Secretary in the State Department for
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises.

In her current career, Hon. Susan Auma Mang'eni has
demonstrated exceptional leadership and expertise in
promoting and supporting the MSME sector. She
possesses a wealth of knowledge in business
development, policy formulation, and strategic
planning, enabling her to effectively address the
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| Recognizing the importance of collaboration and
]pax’tnerships, Hon. Susan Auma Mang'eni has

public and private sectors to drive inclusive growth
and sustainable development. She has been a strong
advocate for policy reforms that remove barriers to
entry and promote fair competition, ensuring that
MSMEs can compete on a level playing field.

! . - . .
She is an independent non-executive Director

Date of birth on 7 October, 1978

! Dr. Parmain ole Narikae is the Managing/Executive
Director. He holds Doctorate  in Business
Administration. He also holds an MBA and Bachelor
of Science Degree in Business Administration (First
class honors) from United States International
University. He has wide experience as a career banker
having served in senjor leadership position as Chief
Manager, General Manager and Executive Director
in Co-operative Bank and Chase Bank. He is a
member of the Institute of Directors.

He is an executive Director
He joined on 5% September, 2016,

_Date of birth 20" December , 1965 ]
Emma Wangari Wainaina is a resourceful and
articulate leader with commitment to social,
academic and professional development of the
society.
She holds a bachelor of Commerce Management
from Gretsa University and a higher diploma in
Business Administration from the Jomo Kenyatta
University of Agriculture and Technology and a
higher diploma in Accounting from Zetech College.
Madam Emma has vast experience on matters finance
and has worked as an accountant in various
Enterprises.
She is a member of the International Republican
Institute’s (IRT) flagship youth network, Generation
Democracy, a network of 280 members and 5()
alumni from 80 countries which provides access to
Opportunities  that increase thejr capacity to
effectively mobilize young  people, champion
democratic reform, as well s tackle barriers to
e SIS 1O |
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meaningful youth participation  to build more
resilient, responsive, and inclusive democracies.
Emma Wangari is an independent non-executive
Director and Chair of the Finance Committee.

Date of birth 24™ January , 1981

Antony Kaara
Director

Antony Kaara is an accomplished governance and
communication expert specializing in  political
communication and strategy formulation. With a degree in
Communication and Political Science from the esteemed
University of Nairobi, he brings a wealth of knowledge
and experience. Antony has honed his expertise in
strategic  planning, policy development, and public
relations. His ability to craft comprehensive strategies and
engage stakeholder’s shapes policies and drives impactful
governance processes. With a resolute commitment to
excellence, Antony leverages his analytical abilities and
passion for policy shaping to contribute to effective
governance practices. His track record of success
demonstrates his dedication to driving positive change,
making him a valuable asset in shaping policies and
enhancing governance processes for organizations and
society as a whole. Antony Kaara is an independent non-
executive Director and Chair of the Resource
Mobilization Committee.

Date of birth 8" January , 1978

6

Alex Wafula Wamalwa
Director

With over 9 years of legal expertise, Wamalwa, a
practicing advocate of the High Court of Kenya,
specializes in empowering Micro, Small and Medium
Micro Enterprises (MSMES) through commercial law and
policy development. His proficiency spans diverse areas,
including business formation, contract drafting,
intellectual property, regulatory compliance, employment
law, dispute resolution, taxation, data protection,
consumer protection, credit access, and trans-border
transactions. Collaborating closely ~with MSMEs,
Wamalwa provides strategic legal counsel, enabling
businesses to navigate complexities and foster innovation.
His proactive approach involves shaping policies in
collaboration with government and private sectors,
creating a conducive environment for MSME’s growth
and sustainable success in the dynamic commercial
landscape. Alex Wafula is an independent non-executive
Director and Chair of HR & Legal Committee.

Date of birth 1 September , 1989
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I ‘f;a*tu‘c’lﬁ"tmf,h‘h;h“nﬁhéml;g is a seasoned Information |
Scientist. She holds a Bachelor of Science in Information
Science from Moi University and ig currently pursuing a
Master’s  Degree in Diplomacy and International
Relations in Kenyatta University. Patricia has worked in
various corporate institutions and Non-Governmental
Organizations (NGO's). She brings rich experience of
over 10 years, steadfast leadership, innovative thinking
and strategic thinking that will be instrumental in ensuring
that organization goals are achieved, Patricia Chelimo is
an independent non-executive director and the Chair
Patricia Chelimo Audit Committee.

Director Date of birth 11™  October . 1982

?Eﬂamﬁxrm is an Advocate of the High Court of
| Kenya with over 10 years post admission experience
n the legal profession  with expertise  in
(ffonveyarming, Litigation, Contracts and
Commercial Law. She i a member of the Law
Society of Kenya. She is also a Certified Secretary
(CS) and a2 member of the Institute of Certified Public
Secretaries. She is also a Governance, Ethics, Risk
and Compliance (GERC) expert,
She holds a Bachelor of Laws degree (LLB) from the
University of Nairobj and a Post Graduate Diploma
in Law from the Kenya School of Law (KSL). She is
currently pursuing a  Master of  Business
Charity Ndeke Administration (Strategic Management) at the
Manager, Legal Services & University of Nairobi.
Company Secretary She Joined Kenya Industria] Estates in 20135,

Date of birth: 29 §¢ tember, 1986
————————— | Date of birth: 29" Sep
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4. Key Management Team

Dr. Parmain ole Narikae is the Managing Divector,
He holds Doctorate in Business Administration. He

o also holds an MBA and Bachelor of Science Degree
1 ook ) in Business Administration (First class honours)
ot {from United States International University. He has

wide experience as a career banker having served in
senior leadership position as Chiel' Manager,
General Manager and Executive Director in Co-
operative Bank and Chase Bank. He is a member of
the Institute of Directors.

¢ ' Dr. Parmain ole Narikae

{ Managing Director I1e joined on 5th September, 2016.

Mrs., Monica Kotut is currently the Manager,
Corporate Strategy and Planning. She holds an MBA
(HR Option) from Kenyatta University; Bachelor of
Arts from Moi University and Higher National
Diploma in Human Resource Management from the
[nstitute of Human Resource management (IHRM).
She is member of the Institute of Human Resource
management. She joined KIE in 1994 as a Projects
Officer and rose through the ranks to the current
position.

Monica C. Kotut
Manager, Corporate Strategy and
Planning

[Se)

Mr.  Joseph Ayieko liolds an  MSc in
Entrepreneurship from Jomo Kenyatta University of
Science and Technology, Bachelor of Business
Administration with Information Technology,
Diploma in Community Based Project Planning and
Management. Diploma in Cooperative Audit, CPA~
(Part 1) and Certificate in  Rural Credit
Management, Certified ILO Trainer on Gender and
Entrepreneurship, Certified in Strategic
Management and Leadership. He has over Twenty-
five (25) years of work experience within MSME
Sector. He is a consullant and entreprencurship
Joseph Otieno Ayieko traing‘ on Ts‘usgainable rural economic gmpuwermem,
Manager, Business Advisory Services a trained Environmental Impact and Environmental
3 Audit Assessor and a member of Eastern Afiica
Network for Gender and Enterprise Development
Trust.
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Charity Ndeke is an Advocale of the High Court of
Kenya with over 10 years post admission experience
in the Jegal profession  with expertise  in
Conveyancing, Litigation,  Contracts and
Commercial Law. She is a member of the Law
Society of Kenya. She is also a Certified Secretary
(CS) and a member of the Institute of Certificd
Public Secretaries, She is also a Governance, Ethics.
Risk and Compliance (GERC) expert.

She holds a Bachelor of Laws degree (LLB) trom the
University of Nairobi and g Post Graduate Diploma
in Law from the Kenya School of Law (KSL). She
is  curren(ly pursuing a  Master of Business
Administration (Strategic Management) at the
University of Nairohj.

She Joined Kenya Industrial Estates in 2015.

Charity Ndeke

Manager. Legal  Services & Company

Secretary

CPA Charles Mativo s M:countanl by profession |

“and holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from
KCA University. He js g Certified  Public
Accountant CPA (K) and a member of the Institute
of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK).

He is a highly motivated Finance professional with
over 30 years® experience with excellent analytical.
conceptual and human skills. He has exiensive
knowledgc in accounting systems. data analysis,
budget preparation and implementation. strategy

: , formulation and financial reporting. He has track
CPA Charles M. Mativo record in leading cross-functional teams to achieve

organizational goals and has excellent inter-personal
skills. He joined the company in 1985,

—— - N
: Mr Churchill Achika holds a Bachelor's of Scicnce

degree in Electrical & Electronics Engincering from
the Jomo Kenyalia University of Agriculture and
Technology. He s currently pursuing Masters of
Business Management degree al United States

International University.  He has  extensive
knowledge in engineering, manufacturing and
facilities management having served in various
i managetial roles at 13ast A frican Breweries Limited,
Churchil‘]. W. Achika. He is a registered engineer and a member of (he
Manager. Industrial Estatos Project Management Institute. He joined KIE in the
Development & Incubations serviees year 2021.
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Reginald Kimanthi
Manager, Operations

Mr. Reginald Kimanthi is an  economist by
profession and holds a BA in Cooperative
Management from Kenyatta University,

He joined KIE in 1986 as a Projects Officer and rose
through the ranks as Branch Manager, Regional
Manager and Head of Department and is currently
the Manager, Operations.

7
CPA Teobard Mugo
Manager, Internal Audit

CPA Teobard Mugo is an Accountant by prolession
and holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree [rom
KCA  University. He is a Certified Public
Accountant and a member of the Institute of
Certified Public Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK).
He is in charge of the Internal Audit Department. He
joined the company in 1994,

Dr. Doreen K. Kimathi
Manager, Credit Department

Dr. Doreen Kimathi is currently the Manager in
charge of Credit Department. She holds a PhD in
entrepreneurship from Jomo Kenyatta University of
Agriculture and Technology (JKUAT), an MBA
(Strategic Management) from USIU-Africa and
Bachelor of Commerce (Honours), Kenyatta
University. She has vast banking and finance
experience spanning over 13 years. She joined KIE
in2017.

Moses Miano
Manager, Risk Management

Mr. Moses Miano is a corporate risk specialist and
strategist in communicating risk policies and
processes  for enterprises through research and
skilful handling and interpreting data. e holds a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from
the Nairobi University and a Bachelor’s degree in
science from Egerton University, He is a certified
trainer of trainers in First aid and fire Marshal and
also a graduate from Institute of Advanced
technology. He joined KIE in 2021 {rom Absa Bank
Kenya ltd where he was a risk manager

Xili
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Mr. Dennis ¢, Ong’aria is an ICT practitioner
licensed by the Institute of Electrical and
Engineers (IEEE). 11e holds
Degree in Information Te

e

Electronics
a Bachelor of Science
chnology and a Diplorma in
Information Systems Managcmgm. He

is currently
pursuing

a Master of Sciepce degree in Information

chhnolog_v (MSc IT) at JKUAT.

He joined KIFE ip November 2021 ag Manager 1C

He has over 8 years 1CT May
various State A gencies,

Dennis G, Ongaria
Manager, [CT

lagement experience in

T
Mbula is currently the Manager, Human
Resource ang Administration. She holds a Masier of
Business Administration (Human Resource
Management) [rom Kenyatta University: Bachelor
of Arts in Social Scicnces from The Catholic
University of Eastern Alrica; Higher Nationg]
Diploma in Human Resource Managemen from the
Institute of Human Resource Managemen and
Certified Human Resource Professional
CHRP (K) from the Human Resource M
Professionals Examin

Esther

Kenya,
anagement
ations Board (HRMPEB), She
is a Full Meniber of the Institu(e of Humanp Resource
Management (TR M), She joined KIE in September

2022 as the Fluman Resource ang Administration.
Manager,

Esther M. Mbula
Manager, Human
Administration

Resource anl
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5. Chairperson’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me great pleasure to present 1o you Kenya Industrial
Estates Annual Report and Financial Statements for 2022/2023
Financial Year. .

[ am glad to inform you that the company delivered impressive
results in its core mandate areas of providing affordable credit,
affordable incubation facilities, Business Advisory Services
and providing Business linkages.

The Operating Environment

During the period under review, the global economy experienced slowed growth in most
countries including the advanced economies as well as emerging markets. Developing
countries experienced slow growth due to monetary tightening, strengthening of US Dollar
compared to most currencies, rising inflation and disruption of supply chain due to Russia~
Ukraine war.

The Kenya Economy expanded by 4.6 percent in 2022 compared to growth of 7.6 percent in
2021. The growth was spread across all sectors but was more pronounced in the service related
sectors such as financial and insurance sector, Information and communication, and transpott
and storage. The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises remained resilient within the period
despite the economic challenges.

The MSMEs sector continues to play an important vole in the social economic
transformation of the country. It contributes the largest number of jobs in the country with
the sector contributing 93% of total employment and absorbing 9 out of 10 youths joining
the job market. The MSMEs have shown that when well established they can contribute

significantly to the economic growth, GDP and promote inclusive growth.

The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises sector was boosted after being chosen by the
government under the Bottom Up Economic Transformation agenda (BETA) together with
Agriculture, Housing and settlement, Healthcare and Digital superhighway for
prioritization in implementation of government programs. This was because of the sector’s

ability to create jobs and promote inclusive growth.

XV



KENYA INDUSTRIAL ESTAT xS
Annual Report zlx]_(l_]_?ﬂx_:i_ngjg}wﬁ't

atements for the year ended June 30, 2023
e ‘_,___~_ww._%___w‘ﬁ~~_~_\___m~____

Business Performance

The organization achieved strong results within the period despite the challenging
operating environment. The Fina ncial results were impressive with the company recording
a 47.40% growth iu pre-tax profit to post a profit of Kshs. 87.01 Million. *On support to
MSMEs, the company provided affordable credit amounting to Kshs.1.159 Billion in
2022/2023 Financial Year, created 3 ,341 jobs, trained 70,157 entrepreneurs on business
and technical skills and linked 7,470 entrepreneurs to markets, source of materials and
technology.

Our Strategy

Our value proposition to Our customers is commitment to cham pioning the development
of MSMEs in Kenya by ensurin 8 the enterprises are incubated, provided with affordable
credit, adequate workspace as well as developing their capacity in a sustainable way. Our
Strategy is anchored on four key result areas in line with our mandate. The Key result areas
are: Financing, Industria] development, Business Advisory services and Institutional
Development. These pillars will ensure that we achieve our theme of consolidating

operational gains for growth and sustainability.

Sustainability

The organization ig concerned with the environment and social issues affecting our staff
and the communities in the various parts of the country we operate in. Within the period
under review, we worked with our MSMFEs and co mmunities in various parts of the county
to ensure environmental sustainability, We had number of community engagement
where we planted trees in our industrial estates. Our staff are committed and will continue

to be sensitized and capacity build to participate and contribute to environmental
conservation,

Governance

The organization success is anchored on an entrenched culture of Corporate governance,
The organization hag a Board with an ideal skil] mix to offer appropriate guidance to
management. The Board remained focused on sound principles of corporate governance
and ensuring long-term growth and profitability of the organization. Within the period
under review several Board members’ term expired and were replaced with new members,
The details are disclosed in the Statemn ent of Corporate Governance.

XVi
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Outlook

The operating environment is expected to remain challenging with the economic survey
2023 forecasting a deceleration in world economy attributed to the on-going global
conflicts, tightening of monetary policies and high inflation. However, despite these
challenges, the Kenya economy is expected to remain resilient in 2023 supported by robust
performance in services sector and expected recovery of Agriculture, and the government’s
development Agenda aimed at achieving economic turnaround and inclusive growth. The

Board will remain focused on the development of MSMEs which is among the sectors

earmarked to turnaround the economy.

Appreciation

I highly appreciate the Government of Kenya, through the Ministry of Cooperative and
Micro, Small and Medium enterprise (MSME) development for the support it continues to-
extend to the organization. I also thank my fellow Board member, our customers and staff
for their dedication and unwavering support in ensuring the organization reaches great

heights in realising its mandate.

1'/ S
ﬁa&w

Her Excellency, Lily Ng’ok
Chairperson, Board of Directors
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6. Report of the Managing Director

Fam defighted to present to you Kenya Industrial Estates (KIE)
annual report for the year ended 30th June 2023, This was an

3 e. exciting period when we witnessed increased business activitics
i /*"9& \) in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Sector away from
L% the Pandemic period. The MSMEs continued to be resilient

despite many challenges they encountered within the period.

Our Purpose

Kenya Industrial Bstates (KIE) is a government agency whose
mandate is to support industrialization through the development
of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises in the country. KIF
executes this mandate through provision of affordable credit to MSMEs, provision of Business
Advisory Services (BAS). provision of incubation facilities, and provision of linkages to
markets and Technology.

Business Environment

The operating environment was challenging due to slow down in global economy in hoth
advanced economies and in the emerging markets and developing counties, This was caused
by tightening of monetary policies, rising inflation, strengthening of US Dollar against most
currencies and disruption of supply chain due to on-going conflicts.

Despite the challenging environment the Kenya Economy was resilient and expanded by 4.6
percent in 2022 compared to growth of 7.6 percent in 2021. The growth was spread across al|
sectors but was more pronounced in the service related sectors such as financial and insurance
sector, Information and communication, and transport and storage. The Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises performance was impressive despite these challenges which affected the
purchasing power of thejr customers. KIE support the MSMEs to sail through the challenging
period by providing credit and Business Advisory Services,

The MSMEs sector was boosted by chosen among five government’s priority sectors selected
to champion economic turnaround under the Bottom Up Economic Transformation Agenda
(BETA). The sector was selected because of its ability to create Jjobs, with the sector
contributing 93% of totaj employment in the country making it the largest contributor to job
creation and significantly contributing to the country’s GDP.

Business Performance

The organization recorded remarkable performance in its business in the period under review.
We noted many MSMEs were in need of working capital while other required machinery to
modernise and increase production. Other enterprises also required capacity building to
improve their skills. During the period under review we partnered with g development partner
to conduct the SME loop training program with the aim of providing systematic and structured
training and coaching of young entieprencurs. Through this program 80 MSME were coached
in Uasin Gishy and Kisumu Counties. The company also in collaboration with 2 local
university to facilitate incubation of 3( selected women entrepreneurs to access Banana
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processing technology in Tharaka-Nithi and Meru Counties and Diary processing technology
in Kajiado County.

Overall the company provided credit to MSMEs amounting to Kshs.1.159 Billion within the
period under review compared to 1.03 Billion in 202172022 creating 35,341 jobs. The company
trained 70,157 entrepreneurs on business and technical skills compared te 56,854 in the
previous year and linked 7,470 entrepreneurs to markets, source of materials and technology
compared to 4,312 in the previous year.

Financial Performance

The company has continued to register profitability year on year from the first time it registered
a profit in 2019/2020. During the period under review, the Company recorded a 47.40%
increase in profit by posting a pre-tax profit of Kshs.87.01 Million compared to pre-tax of Kshs.
52.34 Million in the last financial year. Company assets increased to Kshs. 6.21 Billion as at
30th June 2023 compared to Kshs. 5.89 Billion as at 30th June 2022. This is an indication that
the company’s business strategy is working.

Strategy
Our strategy is anchored on four key result areas in line with our mandate of facilitating

Industrialization through development of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. These are:
Financing, Industrial development, Business Advisory services and Institutional
Development. The strategy will guide the company as we move aggressively to support the
MSMEs.

Our people
Our people remain the most important assets of the company. The organization will continue

ensure the staff are well skilled to perform in their areas and are facilitated with tools and
conducive work environment to bring out their best.

Outlook

The global economic outlook is expected to be challenging because of tightening of monetary
policies, rising inflation and on-going conflicts. However, the Kenya economy is projected to
be resilient supported by a robust service sector and expected recovery of the Agricultural
Sector. The MSMESs being the engine of growth are expected to play a major role in the
economic turnaround. KIE will play its role of facilitating the enterprises with the much needed
_g:redit finance, incubation facilities, and capacity building and market linkages.

( /W M /WW\

Dr. Parmain Ole Narikae, PhD, MBS
Managing Director
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Industrial

Development

& Services)
4

Pillar 2:

(Infrastructure

industrial

MSMEs

e Increase

availability of

workspace for

PN'umbe of
new Industrial
Parks

developed

b 5 sites in high

density areas

Unserved Counties

b No activities undertaken

due to lack of funds

. Accelerate the o Number of »300 MSMEs s [ncubated 32 MSMEs
growth of MSMEs within the institutions
MSMEs from | incubated industrial sheds across
Micro-small- and/or scaled the country
medium up
| Pillar 3: b Develop the *No. Of e Train 58,000 e Trained 70,157
Business Entrepreneurial | Entrepreneurs | entreprencurs entrepreneurs
Advisory Capacity of Reached; . Facilitate creation P Created 7,470 linkages
MSMEs of 5,700 linkages
“Pillar 4: Enhance Risk | Compliance 100% P Fully complied with risk
i Management with risk
Institutional management
management
Strengthening | Enhance Brand 100% P To increase its brand
Corporate awareness e
: _ awareness, visibility, the
mage

organization

participated in 6

exhibitions and trade

fares across the country
as follows:

« SMEs Exhibition by
Nation Media Group
at KICC

» SMEs Exhibition by

Kenya Association of
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7. Statement of Performance against Predetermined Objectives for FY 2022/2023
Section 81 Subsection 2 (B) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the
accounting officer to include in the financial Statement, a statement of the national government

entity’s performance against predetermined objectives,

Kenya Industrial Estates has 4 Strategic pillars/objectives and 5 str

current Strategic Plan for the FY 2021-Fy2023. These str.

follows:

ategic objectives within the

ategic pillars/objectives are as

Pillar/Objective 1: inancing
" e + Pillar/Objective 2: Industrial Development (Infrastructure & Services)
Pillar/Objective 3 Butsiness A dvisory
Pillar/Objective 4 Institutional Strengthening
Kenya Industrial Estates develops its annual work plans based on the above 4 strategic
pillars/objectives. Assessment of the Board ’s performance against its annual work plan is done
on a quarterly basis. Kenya Industria] Estates achieved jts performance targets set for the Fy

- 2022/2023 period for its 4 strategic pillars/objectives, as indicated in the diagram below: -

Pillar 1: Mobilize ~/nom ‘ -Mobilizc Kshs

Financing resources to mobilized 876.99 million 528.19 million GoK
finance from GoK and grant
organizational (Kshs 697.01
activities million) from other

sources

Increasing S Disburse at Kshs. " Disbursed Kshs 1.16
Disbursements disbursed 1.0 billion billion

*Create 32,000 jobs | Created 35,34 jobs
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- Manufacturers ar

KICC

* Nairobi Innovation
Week at University of
Nairobi

* World SMEs day at
Kitengela

* St. Mark Anglican

Church of Kenya

MSME Exhibition

" Featured in print media

with national-wide
circulation.

" Maintained and ran

social medial accounts

(Twitter, Facebook and
YouTube)
"TAT of 37 days

Efficient Service Improve loan

Internal delivery Turn .
- disbursement
Systems and Around Time
! Processes (TAT) turnaround time

from 40.17 days to
40 days

Profitability |

Financial
Sustainabi] ity

" Achieved a Profit of
Kshs 87.01 million
0.76% | 1.40%

Post a pre-tax
profit of Kshs 56.2
million

LSS,/ S e
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8. Corporate Governance Statement

To strengthen accountability and to build confidence among stakeholders, KIE is committed to
sound principles of corporate governance and sustainability. The Kenya Industrial Estates
(KIE) Board of Directors is responsible for the long term growth and profitability of the
company, whilst being accountable to shareholders and ensuring compliance with the law and
maintaining the highest standards of Corporate Governance and business ethics.

'The organization has adopted high ethical standards and applies strict rules of conduct based
on the best corporate practices. As part of this commitment, the Board adheres to good
corporate governance and has embraced the following principles:

. Observing high standards of ethical and moral behaviour;
Acting in the best interest of the organization;
Remunerating and promoting fairly and responsibly;
Recognizing the legitimate interests of stakeholders;
Ensuring that the organization acts as a good corporate citizen.

SR L =

The Board has developed a Charter that spells out the roles, composition and responsibilities
of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the highest governing body of the organization. The Board is
appointed within the provisions of Section 6 (1) (¢) of the State Corporations Act. The Board
exercises leadership. enterprise integrity and judgement in directing the organisation so as to
achieve sustainability. The Board, at all times, acts in the best interest of the organisation and
in a transparent manner with integrity, accountability and responsibility. Removal of the
members of the Board is provided under section 7 of the State Corporations Act or by
resignation by a member.

Role and Functions of the Board

In providing leadership and strategic direction to the organization, the Board is tasked with the
following responsibilities:

Determining the business strategies, plans and policies that underpin the corporate strategy;
Discussing and approving strategic plans, policies and annual budgets;

Continually monitoring the exercise of delegated power by management;

Ensuring that a comprehensive system of policies and procedures is in place and that
appropriate governance Structures exist to ensure the smooth, efficient and prudent
stewardship of the company;

Identifying and reviewing key risks, opportunities and strengths relating to the Company;
Ensuring that the company’s organisational structure and capability are appropriate for
implementing the chosen strategies;

2w =

o
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7. Setting policies on internal control and obtaining regular assurance that the system js
functioning effectively and is effective in managing risks:

Board members are inducted and continuously trained to enrich their skills as they steer the
organization to higher levels. Their performance is evaluated yearly. »

In discharging their roles, Board members are required to declare any conflict of interest or the
absence of the same in al] matters.

Board members are also expected to continually adhere to the code of conduct and ethics as
stipulated in the Mwongozo Code of Governance for State Corporations. Governance audit is
carried out to promote appropriate ethics within the organisation.

Board Committees:

For efficient decision making by the Board in discharging its dutics and responsibilities, the
following Board Committees have been set up and meet under well-defined terms of reference.
. Finance and Investment Committee;
2. Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee:
3. Human Resource and Legal Committee:
4. Resource Mobilization Committee.

The Board defines the terms of reference under which the respective Committees operate. The
Company Secretary is the secretary to all the Board Committees except the Audit Committee
which the Head of Internal Audit is the secretary. The Committees submit reports of their
activities to the Board.

Finance and Investment Committee

This Committee provides leadership in the achicvement of attractive returns on the
organization’s equity, to deliberate on the prudence of financial management and to review the
asset mix and volumes, return on investment in order to achieve the institution’s short-term and
long-term goals.

The membership of the Finance and Investment Committee was as follows:
Alvin Kibet - Chairperson

Ruth Ngobi

Parveen Sige;

Anastasia Kamay

Nicholas Kamauy

O e

Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee

This is an oversight Committee of the Board. The Committee assists the board in discharging
its duties in relation to the safeguarding of assets, the operation of adequate systems, control
processes and the preparations of accurate financial reporting and statements in compliance
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with applicable legal requirements and accounting standards. The Committee reviews and
assesses the integrity of the risk control systems and ensures that the risk policies and strategies
are effectively managed.

The membership of the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committec was as follows:

I. Elizabeth Odhiambo — Chairperson
2. Anastasia Kamau
3. Parveen Sigei

4. Nicholas Kamau

Human Resource and Legal Committee

The Committee’s principal objective is to recommend to the Board sirategic directions in
matters relating to HR and legal compliance.

The membership of the Human Resources and Legal Committee was as follows:
Anastasia Kamau - Chairperson

Ruth Ngobi

Elizabeth Odhiambo

Alvin Kibet

:&b-)l\;-—

Resource Mobilization Committee

The Committee’s main objective of the Resource Mobilisation Committee is to create a pool
of resources to ensure adequate resources are available to fund KIE activities in the foreseeable
future. The Committee’s aim is to ensure that KIE is sustainable in the foreseeable future.

The membership of the Resource Mobilization Committee was as follows:

1. Parveen Sigei - Chairperson
2. Ruth Ngobi

3. Alvin Kibet

4. Elizabeth Odhiambo

5. Nicholas Kamau

Board Meetings

The Board of Directors meets regularly as required in order to effectively and efficiently
monitors the implementation of the Company’s planned strategy, review it in conjunction with
its financial performance and business development and approve issues of strategic nature.
Specific reviews are also undertaken on operational issues and future planning.
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The Notice and Agenda and detailed Boapd Papers of‘meelings
to ensure that the directors receive accurate, timely and ¢fe
discharge theijr duties,

are circulated op g timely basis
ar information to enable them

The Board held 2 meetings durine the vear under review. The attendance was g5 follows:
o o o

- Frq;at;ﬁfoﬂof mceti;gs
in the year 2022/2023 B

e e

Y Attendance

N —————
Name of non-executive

Director
Muthoni Kimani

No. of mecetings
attended

100%

e T

Parveen Si gei -

Ruth Ngobj e = [ 7 —
Alvin Kibet 2 I .
Elizabeth Odhiambo ) - — — o

Nicholag Kamau

Board Rcmuncraﬁon

Board members are remunerated in accordance with the relevant legislative provisions and/or
guidance by the State Corporations Advisory Committee. Detajls of Directors emoluments
during the year are shown on page 38 note 37 (d). Directors are entitled to sitting allowance for
CVery meeting attended. lunch allowance, subsistence allowance and mileage reimbursement
where applicable within set limits, I addition, the Chairman is paid a monthly honorarium,

Directors Shareholdiug

None of the Directors awns shares in the Company in their individual capacity
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9. Management Discussion and Analysis
1.Financial Performance
(a) Pre-tax
During the Financial year 2022/2023, the Company posted a pre-tax profit of Kshs.87.01

Million. This compares to Kshs 52.34 Million for the last financial year, 2021/2022, Kshs.

23.27 profit for the financial year, 2020/2021, a profit of Kshs. 8 95 million for*the financial
ar. The overall Return

year 2019/2020, and a loss of Kshs 93.6 in the 2018/2019 financial ye
on investment for the financial year is 1.40%.
Profit before Taxation Trend for the last five years

PROFIT BEFORE TAX TREND FROM 2018/2019 TO 2022/2023

a0 -
87.01

#0

50

40 34.5
23.27

s

8.95

Kshs' Miliion

©-93.6
2013,’26i9 2019/2020 202072021 2021/2022 2022/2023
34.5 87.01
523\
The Company’s total income for the financial year under review was Kshs 588.12 million
compared to Kshs 555.84 in the last financial year 2021/2022, Kshs. 523.1 in the financial
year,2020/2021, Kshs 463.10 million in the financial year 201 9/2020, and Kshs 393.90 million
in the financial year 2018/2019.
Revenue Streams ‘Itend for the last five years

PROFIT BEFORE TAX -03.6 8.95 23,27

00 REY ENUE STREAMS FROM 2018/2019 TO 2022/2

250
200
150
& 100
02 e
= 5
5 A e
- fa: g
) 0 o )
‘;.2; Interast Rent Financa Incnne Other Income GOK Grant
L 2018/2019 57.5 56.4 2.0 20.7 2453
201.9/2020 70.3 60.9 19,6 33.4 278.9
2020/2021 1149 600 326 35 279.5
202172022 114 .4 64.5 13.6 a3 280.2
© 202272023 174,65 59.02 o 45.70 272.96
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(b) Company Financial Position

The Company total assets as at

[fe Fi‘n;‘;hjl\'t,.‘

280,00

276,50

M G0

W 0g

30M June, 20

Billion for the last financial year 202

as graphically shown below:
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year amounted to Kshs 1.982 Billion comp
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2. Operations
KIE has products designed to meet the needs of customers. There was a marked improvement
in performance during the period under review compared to the previous period as
demonstrated below:
a) Credit to SMEs: For the period under review, the company disbursed Kshs 1,160 Million
to SMEs. This compares to compares 1o 1,028 Million disbursed in the 2021/2022 financial
year, Kshs. 982.30 Million in the financial year 2020/2021, Kshs.1222.4 Million disbursed in
the 2019/2020 Financial Year and Kshs 401.7 in the financial year 2018/2019. This is
graphically depicted below.

Credit to SME's trend from 2018/2019 to 2022/2023

1000
“#00

600

Kshs ' Millions

400

200

2020/2021 2022/2023
Loans Dishursed 2103 401.7 1222.4 982.3 1160
- GOK Grant 1940.4 300 1200 712.15 253.23

b) Entrepreneurship Training: For the period under review, the company trained 70,157
56,853 SMEs across the country. This compares t056,854 SME’s trained in 2021/2022, 42173
SME’s trained in 2020/2021, 57150 SMEs trained in 2019/2020 Financial year and 43,924
trained in 2018/2019 Financial Year as shown in the table below.

Trend of Entrepreneurship Trainings from 2018/2019 to
2022/2023
80,000 ) ) 70,157
70,000
000 57,150 56,854
50.000 43,924 42,173
=} 40,000
20,000
20,000
10.000
2018/2019 201972020 2020/2021 2021/2022 202272023
Entrepreneurship Tramngs 43,924 57,150 42,173 56,854 70,157
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¢}  Linkages: For the period under review, the company recorded 31.4 9% growth in
linkages of SMEs (o large enterprises, market and suppliers of machinery, The company linked
7,470 SME’s compared {0 5.683 SME’S in the previous year, 4,312 SMEs in the financial year
202072021, 3,683 linkages in the financial year 2019/2020 and 2.079 Linkages in the Financial
year 2018/2019. This is depicted in the table below

tinkages Trend from 2018,2019 1o 2022/2023
2000 ey 7,470

7,000
5,68:

6,000 g '

5,000 4312

i

P!
w

5,063

4,000

No.

3.000 2,079

2.000
1,000

0 St e £
2008/2010

Linkages 2,079

202072021 22142022 2022/2023

4,312 9,68 7470

3. Key projects and investment being implemented by KIE

The company is currently implenmnling one project namely Credit to Small and Medjum
Enterprises.

Credit to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs)

This project aims at providing atfordable medium to long-term credit to MSMEs in the
manufacturing sector which is core to the country vision of becoming a newly industrialized,
globally competitive and prosperous middle income country by year 2030. The total project
cost is estimated at Kshs.5.35 Billion and is being implemented up to 2024/2025. The expected
outputs of the project are: Dishy rsement of Kshs.5.35 Billion to SMEs. Creation of 10,700 new
enterprises and Creation new !6050()}0[)3‘ Other benefits of the project are: Stimulating rural
industrializat-ion, Wealth Creation, Equitable distribution of wealth. Support to Youth and
Women, Value addition to local raw materials and increase in contri bution to government taxes
by SMEs. The project is funded by Government of Kenya.

4. Major risks facing the com pany
The company's overal] visk management programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in
the business environment and seeks (o minimize the potential adverse effect of such risks on
its performance by setting aceeptable levels of risk. The major risks for the company are credit,
liquidity market and Operational risk,
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a) Credit Risk Management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due.

The company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to liquid funds and loans advanced to
customers. The company credit risk attributable to liquid funds is low because the counter
parties are banks with high reputation. Credit risk attributable to loans is managed through a
framework that sets out policies and procedures covering its measurement and*management.
The company has ensured clear segregation of duties between transaction originators in the
business (Filed officers and Business Development) and approvers in the Risk Function. All
credit exposure limits are approved within a defined credit approval authority matrix. The
company also manages its credit exposures through the principle of diversification across
products, geographical locations, industries and client segments. Potential credit losses from
any given account, client or portfolio are mitigated using a range of tools such as collateral,
credit insurance and guarantees.

b) Liquidity Risk Management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. KIE’s Board of Directors have built a liquidity risk
management framework for managing the company short-term. medium and long-term funding
requirements. KIE continuously monitors forecasts and actual cash flows to ensure company’s
liquidity requirements are met.

¢) Market Risk Management
It is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect KIE. KIE currently is not actively affected by foreign exchange risk
and equity/commodity prices due to its nature of business.
[nterest rate risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows because of a change
in market interest rates which affects KIE’s investment. KIE interest rate regime is fairly stable
and not driven by on-going market dynamics.

d) Operational Risk
Operational risk is the potential for loss arising from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people and systems or from the impact of external events. The management of operational
risk is a challenge due to its broad scope as operational risks arise from all activities carried
out within KIE. KIE endeavours to discuss all operational risks with department heads and
unit managers to ensure effective controls are in place with a review at least once a year.

5.  Material arrears in statutory/financial obligations
The company has no material arrears in statutory and financial obligations.

6. Company’s compliance with statutory requirements
‘The company does not have any governance issues among the Board or members of top
management. Further there is no conflict of interest.
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10. Environmental and Susi‘ainabiiiiy chm’ting

Kenya Industrial Estates (K] E)isa Govermncm'~owncd Dcvelopment,Finance Institution (DFI)
within the Ministry of Cooperatives and Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME)
Development whose Mandate is 1o promote industrialization in Kenya [hmugl} development of
Micro, Small and Medium enterprises, '

The Company’s target clientele is biy sed towards entrepreneurs” integrated incy bation program
that nurtures Micro, Small an Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) by Supporting them to survive
and grow during the start-up period when they are most vulnerable, and in other growth stages.
The company discharges its mandate by proyid ing the following producis that support MSMEs
development: - Affordable industriaf workspace; Affordable medium to long-term finance:
Business Advisory Services (BAS) and facilitating Sub—Conu'acI'ing and Linkages between
small and mediym enterprises and large-scale enterprises,

Kenya Industria] Estates is a fesponsible corporate citizen and recognises the importance of
incor’porating sustainability principles which include environmental, socia| and Governance
(ESG) best practices in our operations and those of the MSMEs we support, I\/Iainstreaming
these practices is central to the attainment of development outcomes that gre inclusive and
equitable, and contributes to achievement ol united nation’s Sustainable Development Goals.

(i). Sustainability Strategy and profile

Kenya Industria] Estates (KIE) is committed to creating a long-term value for our Stakeholders
in all the areas of our operation. As we deliver on our mission, we alse seek to ensure
sustainability of (e organization, customers and the environment. We are committed to
responsible and ethica] business practices that ensure oy customers derive vajue from our
l‘elaﬁonship. Our staffare nurtured to bring out thejy bestand a robuyst relationship is maintained
with our partners,

As an organization operating in various parts of the couniry. we are concerned with the
environment, socjal and governance issues affecting our staff and the communities in the areas
operate. KIE is involved in Supporting MSMEs across the country and we seek to ensure that
the Supported MSMEs conform to environmental and Social guidelines to ensure thejr
Operation do not negatively affect the environment, Human health, Safety and Security of
communities and do pot threaten biodiversity and cultural heritage.

Our mandate of Supporting Industrialization through development of Small and Medium
Enterprises (SMEs) is aligned to sustainable Development Goa| (SDG) No.9 on building
resilient infrastructure; Promoting inclusive and sustainable industrialization and furthering
innovation. Our focus areas for sustainability agenda are; Environment, Oyp employees,
market place practices and community engagement
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(ii). Environmental Performance

Kenya Industrial Estates s committed to the conservation of’ the environment, prevention of
pollution, effective waste management, minimization of consumption of resources and overall
prevention of environmental degradation in all our business operations.

We recognize environmental protection as one of the guiding principles and a key component
of sound business performance. We are committed to providing quality producfs and services
as we promote and embrace the principle of responsible stewardship of the natural

environment.

Kenya Industrial Estates has developed a policy covering the three broad categories of
Environmental, Social and Governance. On environmental issues the policy has focused on
usdge, management and conservation of natural resources such as energy, land, fresh water and
bio-diversity; reduction of carbon emissions, wasle management and compliance with
environmental regulations.

The organization has also developed procedures to identify the environmental risks posed by
our funding, incubation and capacity building activities recognizing the importance of
environmental sustainability. We have developed internal capacity to identify and manage the
environmental risk and continually train our staff on all business risk areas. Our capacity
building and sensitization on environmental issues extends to our entreprencurs, suppliers and
other stakeholders to empower them (0 participate and contribute to environmental
conservation.

During the Financial year 2022/2023, the company undertook trees planting activities across
our various branch with the aim of restoration sites and natural areas. More than 3,036 trees
were planted.

(iti). Employee Welfare ‘

The company is committed to nurturing talent to bring the best out of each employee.
Employees are the most important asset for the company and form the base upon which the
company delivers services to the public. On recruitment, we are guided by the Constitution,
labour laws, Human Resource manual and best practice. The company is committed to
continuous capacity building of our staff, ensure gender equality and provide a conducive
working environment for all staff.

Gender Equality

The company is committed to provide equal opportunity for all genders and promote diversity
at all levels of management. The gender-disaggregated ratio for the period was 56% Male and
44% Female.

Capacity Building

The organization ensure continuous training of staffto ensure upgrading of core competencies,
knowledge, skills and attitudes to enhance organizational performance, assist employees to
gain competences and skills in preparation for more responsible positions. Capacity building
also helps each employee prepare for changes and ensure availability of sufficient trained
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human resource-base to meet the company’s future requirements, During the period under
review, the company executed some training interventions (o address gaps identified in the
training needs assessment,

Employee Engagement

Having engaged employees is critical (o the achievement oyr strategic ‘goals. We have
undertaken to take on board all our cmployees’ views and so we always encourage ouyr
employees to give their views openly.

Occupational Safety and Health

The Company continues to ensure implementation of Occupational safety and Health Act.
2007. During the period under review we undertook continuous monitoring of work
environment based on regular risk assessment.

(iv).  Market Place Practises

Kenya Industria] Estates conducts its businesscs in a responsible and ethical manner and strives
to follow these general principles: Honesty, Fairness, Respect for customers, suppliers,
employees, and competitors. KI[F through its zero tolerance to corruption  promotes
iransparency and integrity in all iis operations.

The organization ensures responsible competition practice by all suppliers in line with Public
Procurement and Disposal Act 2015.The suppliers undergo a rigorous process of assessment
of their social, environmental and ethjcal performance that increases reliability of the supply
chain, conserves our planet's natural resources, and protects the people who work for and with
us. KIE always ensures timely payment to suppliers.

The organization promotes marginalized groups (Women, Youth and Persons living with
Disabilities) to access Government Procurement opportunities. In the period 2022723, KIE
trained youth, women and persons living with disabilities (PWD) on aceessing government

procurement opportunities, These group benefited from procurement opportunities worth Kshs.
74.3 Million.

In marketing and communications, KIF s committed to responsible advertising in compliance
with the existing laws and national and regional standards. KIE ensures that its marketing
communications are legal, decent, honest, and trathful, with claims having a sound scientific
basis. We are committed to promoting our products in a socially acceptable manner. At the
heart of our marketing is safeguarding consumer rights and interests,

(v). Community Engagements

At Kenya Industrial Estates, we are committed to integrating responsible business practices
into all our activities, not just with words and statements, but also with action and decds, With
our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) commitment, we aim (o positively impact the
workplace, the marketplace, the environment and the community.
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11. Report of the Directors

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2023 which show the state of the company’s alfairs.

i) Principal activities

The principal activities of the company are to promote and facilitat; industrialisation
through the provision of credit facilities, business development services and industrial work
spaces.

if) Results

The results of the company for the year ended June 30, 2023 are set out on page 1.

i) Dividends

The Directors do not recommend dividends.

iv) Directors

The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on page v.

v) Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the company in accordance
with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

Charity Ndeke
Company Secretary/ Secretary to the Board
Nairobi

Date Qi‘f{-’{«_LZ'l?

XXXV



KENYA INDUSTRIAL LESTATES
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Year ended June 30, 2023
T ————2ldal Statements for ——L T PRed June |

S, — e e

12. Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 14 of the State
Corporations Act, require the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of Kenya
Industrial Estates Ltd, which give a trye and fair view of the sig te of affairs (;ftlle Company at
the end of the financial year an the operating results of the Company for that year, The
Directors are also requived to ensure that the Company keeps Proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Company. The Directors are

also responsible for safeguarding (he assets of the Company.

The Directors are responsible for the Preparation and presentation of the Company’s financial
Statements, which give a true and fajr view of the state of affairs of the Company for and as at
the end of the financial yeqr ended on June 30, 2023. These responsibilities inclyde: (1)
Maintai,ning adequate financig] management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to
be effective throughout the reporting period; (ii) Mainmining proper accounting records, which
disclose with reasonable accuracy g any time the financial position of the Company; (jii)
Designing, implemcnﬁng and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fajr
presentation of the financia| statements, and ensuring that they are free from malterial
misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) Safeguarc’ling the assets of the Company; (v)
Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) Making accounting estimates

that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the Company’s financial Statements, which haye been
prepared  using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonablje and  prudent
Judgements ang estimates, in conformity with Internationa] Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), and in the manner required by the PFM Act, 2012 and the State Corporations Act. The
Directors are of the opinion that the Company’s linancial statements give a frye and fair view
of the state of Company’s transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and of
the Company’s financial position as at that date. The Directors further confirm the
completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Company. which have been relied
upon in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements as well as the adequacy of the

Systems of interna| financial conirol,

In breparing the financial statements, the Directors haye assessed the entity’s ability to

continue as g 80ing concern and nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate
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that the company will not remain a going concern for at {east the next twelve months from the

date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements
Kenya | Industrial Estates Financial Statements Wwere approved by the » Board on

_Z_’L J2/ 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Her Excellency, Lily Ng’ok Dr. Parmain ole Narikae, PhD, MBS

Chairperson of the Board/Council Accounting officer

XXXVil
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KENYA INDUSTRIAL ESTATES LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE
I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

s Report on the Financial Statements which considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
Operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the

entity.

REPORT ON THE F INANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Industrial Estates Limited
set out on pages 1 to 47, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2023, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Industrial Estates Limtited for the Year ended 30 June, 2023



budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all materia|
respects, the financial position of the Kenya Industrial Estates Limited as at
30 June, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with
the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Companies Act, 2015.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
Unsupported Land Ownership

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 16(c) to the financial
statements indicates several parcels of land measuring 47.9928, which have no title
documents. As reported previously, available information indicates that the process of
acquiring titles for these land parcels has been underway for significantly long duration.
Management has indicated tiat they are pursuing the National Lands Commission to
process and issue the ownership documents. However, by the time of concluding this
audit the title deeds were yet to be issued.

In the circumstances, it was not possible to confirm the rightful ownership of these parcels
of land, and there is the risk of encroachment by private developers.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAIs). | am independent of the Kenya Industrial Estates Limited
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics, | have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
1. Long Outstanding Payables ~ Retention Money

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements
reflects trade and other payables balance of Kshs.103,319,000. Included in the balance
is an amount of Kshs.46,083,000 which relates to retention money, which has been

In the circumstances, the Company is at risk of incurring penalties and interest with the
continued delays in paying the retention money.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Industrial Estates Limited Jor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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2. Budgetary Control ang Performance

The statement of COmparison of budget and actual amounts reflects fina| révenue budget
and actual on COmparable basijs of Kshs.479,221 ,000 ang Kshs.588,108,000 respectively
resulting to an over-collection of Kshs.108,887,000 or 23% of the budget,

The revenue over-collection is an indication of under budgeting on revenye Sources,
which may have affected priority planning of activities ang impact negatively on delivery
of goods and services to the public.

Key audit Matters are those matters that, in my professiona| judgment, are of most
i 1 ¢

he audit of the financiaj Statements. There were no key audit Mmatters to
report in the year under reviey

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

In the audit report of the previous year, severa] issues were raised under the Report on
Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources and Report on Effectiveness
of interna) Controls, Risk Management and Governance which have remained unresolved
as at 30 June, 2023,

Other lnformation

The Directors are responsipje for the other information, which Comprises the Chairman’s
€port, Report of the Chief Executive Officer, Statement of Performance against
Predetermined Objectives, Corporate Governance Statement, Environmental and
Sustainabitity Report, Report of the Directors, and Statement of Directors’

eSponsibilities. The other information does not include the financia| statements and my
auditor's report thereon




Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMEN]
AND GOVERNANCE :

Conclusion

. As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, | confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
As required by Companies Act, 2015, | report based on audit, that:

I. | have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit;

ii.  In my opinion, adequate accounting records have been kept by the Company, so far
as appears from the examination of those records; and,

iii. The Company’s financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.
Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for

whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control, risk management and governance.

in preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continye as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters

Report of the Auditor-General on k. enya Industrial Estates Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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The Board of Directors s résponsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
Process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors Compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory réquirements, ensuring that effective Processes ang
Systems are in place to address key roles and "esponsibilities in relation to governance

and risk Management, ang ensuring the adequacy angd effectiveness of the contro|
environment.

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit Objectives are to obtain feasonable assurance aboyt whether the financia|
statements as a whole gre free from Mmaterig| misstatement, Whether dye to fraud or error,




L
£

reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts which would be material in relatior; to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projectiois of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAIls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. nd assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

Identify a

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence which is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my Opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contro|

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the. reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Company to €xpress an opinion on the financial statements.

¢ Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control which are identified during the audit.

Report of the 4 uditor-General on Kenya Industrial Estates Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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14. Statement of Profit or L.oss and Othe
30th June 2023.

[ Description T T e T . 2022 ]
I ot R Kshs'000° | " Kshs’000"
Revemues IR e
Revenue from Contracts with ¢ I 72829 143585
Other luicome [
?; c'\.nhf-s flOl]T’.h:;lgl-[;:l‘;;ll»—"L)‘ L,l nmuu - ~ ; - 772’96 o “‘_‘“8()‘240
Finance income I 34491
| Otherincome T T ERrs 97,526
F&mnc?enﬁue?“”“ o T ‘M'”fe?ﬁi)};““ 55, 842
Operating Expenses a IR T
Administration costs 0T weee e
Selling and distribution costs T T T 590
Mi_(k)tﬂl 0])01’8tll—]{,TCX[lellSC.\;_W~ T “"":*""' _HM“N—»‘S(]—,T&)— - —?03 50]

bi-’roﬁtl(!oss) bcfou‘mi;;;ltion h

Income tax expense/( C!t‘,dll)

Profit/(ic it/(loss) after taxation

Emnmgzs per share — basic and chlutuf

vaxdend per shmc T T MI‘\? |

ear ux(lui lunc 3() 2()23

r Comprehensive Income for the year ended

v | >

B 52,341

3 457
48 884

87,008
5,514
81,494

l’)
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15. Statement of Financia} Position as at 30th June 2023
-— 7 e

Description — 202 23
- Kshs’000" Kshs’oo_n;’
Assets L B )
Non-Current Assets - b
Property, Plant And Equipment 782.193 812.265
Intangible Assets B . 9.496 9.496
Investment Property ) ’ 998.585 998.585
Right of use Assels 485.425 489.394
e i) — 107,054
28.074 28,918
Loans B 1.979467 _ 1.568,046
. Total Non-Current Assets 4,283,240 3,906,704
—_ : — V0,704
Q Current Assets o )
Inventories ! 6,343 6,390
m———‘l——_.‘\_.“____
¥ 179,794 220,009
!.740;&61 1.755.1 19
1,927,104 1,981,518
6,210,344 | 5,888,222
80,277 80,277
5.765.085 5.435.025
5,845,362 5,515,302
Non-Current Liabilitics
Btk e S
Deferred Tax Liability 35.608 35,608 |
— EERL — T
Total Non-Current Liabilitics 35,608 35,608
218,518 218,518
Trade and Other Payableg 103.319 113,548
Provision of lcave pay
329,374
6,210,344 5,888,222

The financial slatements were approved by the Board on _g_i/jé/ 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

/ /S

7 / .
Dr. p. Narikae, PhD, MBS Charles Mativg Her Exceliency, i\,ily Ng’ok
Managing Director Head of Finance Chairman of the Board

ICPAK M/NO: 3736
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17. Statement of Cash F Flows for the ve

INVESTING ACTIVlTlE‘»

Purchase of property, plant and L,L]Hl])mei][l

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

GOK Development Grant

Net cash generated from/ (used

EQUIVALENTS

YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A AT
| YEAR

Net cash generated from/ (usui in) investing activities

in) ﬁnancinv activities

INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF

END OF THE |
———

e B S

ar ended 30 June 2023

36(b)

36(h)

255,230 |

R ——

(14,651) |

1 1,755,118

255230 |

L a9n|
@) 8527

604,634
604,634
347,328

1.407.791

A8.327)

—— T 203  agm;

________________________ o Notes Kshs’000 Kshs’ (lO(_l_

OPERATING ACTIVITIES R - !'
Cash generated from / (used in) operations - L 36 i »304’745)_ (282,358
Interest received - o L 8 36,765 | 33579
Net cash generated from/ (used in) npcix Ti%‘ft-nitt‘i S ____4257593_9me (248,779)




'S201A12S PUE SPOOS JO 25N 31} U] SSUIARS SUIOS UT PA}[NSI JeAL SYj) SULINP SANSEIL JUSWITBUBA 150D ~SIOIAISS PUB spoos joasny (P)

Teak ot} UNIIM PIPN|oU0d Sem YoIym dn-uesjo o1jojHiod sea SIYL -3JO-I3LIA UOISIACI] (@)

-poredionue uzy) 19YS1Y SEAM JUSWAAIOE S, -2uwiodu] doueut] (q)

pajedionue UBY) $301AI9S AIOSIAPY SSUISNE WOL) SWIOOUL 13MO] J[NS1 B SEA ST, 1-3UI0OU] RO (»)

SADNVIIVA YOrYIA OL SILON AUOLVNY1dXE

24091 S6£°€8 6+ 18 951 (09) w 981 PoLIdJ 213 10] SSO7] / 10 RN
%(8) (76¥°S7) 719°905 SO0 6LY 191°11 F06° LoV aanyipuadxy (810,
- - - - - - Eﬁ& moﬁﬁwmﬂjw pue sjuviny
%001) (ric’c v1S°C - - - pred uonexe],
() | °4{96) (616°€T) 616+T 0001 - 000°1 1JO 91LIA UOISIAOI]
%5{(¢8) (S65°08) 7r6°CE LYEC - L¥EC uoneIoaIda(] pue LONEZLIoWY
%0 {L) 65TE T8TE (ooo1) TSTY pred oy
(@) [ %zl 988°¢C1 086°€ET 998°6¥1 -198°71 CO0°LET $20IAIDS PUE SPOOD) JO 950
%S 009791 000°€0¢ 009°61€ (00L) 00€°0T¢ saafodwuz 0y uorresuaduio)
sasuadxy
%61 L8880 S01°88S 17T°6LY ISTTL 060°89¥ 2wodui [BIO ],
@ | %<8 09%°0€ $9L°9¢ ) - S0<9 aW0dU] 2OUBUIL]
(®) | %¢¢ 11T°¢1 SiTAS ¥6¥°0¢ 191°11 ceeel EDRSIRETITS)
%S 1 £+9°8 L7068 78€°06 = #8€°0¢ awoU WY
%0 - 096°TLT 096°TLT 0g) 066TLT WIWILIDAOD) [BUONEN WO} JURID
o1t TLs Vs 1S9°EL1 8L07611 = 8LOGTT SUWIISU] 182333
000548 000,5US 000,5US 000:SUS ,000:8US INUIARY
£707-7707 £707-7707 £707-T10T
saourlava IDUBLIEA ou:vhw.u_ﬁ mmm«n_ — m-a R QD n
ziaa3em uo | {2) uewIoydg | dqeredmod 398png jpulg “ SREPY | 3 cvn q
- = . [eUlsLI()
uonzueidxy | 28rIUIJ uo [Ny
£TNT dung Of popua poriad 21)) 10] SJUNOWE |¥NPY pue 18png jo uosiaedmio)) jo JwmwAEIS "1
- €70T ‘DT ounp papud J824 21]3 10] SHUIWIYR)S BB pUE y10day] renuuy

STIVIST TVIMISAANI VANTY



KENYA INDUSTRIAT, LSTATES _
Annual Report and F inancial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023
————— " 21 MInancial St =222 thded June 3,

i

19. Notes to the Financiaj Statements
1. General Information

KIE is established by and derives jts authority and accountability from the Companics Act.
The company is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled i Kenya. The
company’s principal activity is to promote and facilitate industria}izati‘on through provision
of credit facilities, business development services and industrial workspace.

For Kenyan Companics Act reporting. purposes, the balance sheet s represented by the
Statement of ﬁnancia[ position and the profit and loss account by the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in these financig] statements

2. Statement of Compliance ang Basis of Preparation

The financiaj Statements have heen Prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement at re-valyed amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment,
marketable securities and financia] instruments at fajy value, impaired assets at their estimated
recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at thejp present value. The
breparation of financia] statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) allows the yse of estimates and assumptions, It also requires management
to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Kenya Industria] Estates Ltd accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of Judgment o complexity, or where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the (inancial Statements, are disclosed in note 5-
(I-VID),

The financiaf statements have been prepared and presented i Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of the Company and al] values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (Kshs*000).

The financia] statements have beep Prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the Statc
Corporations Act, and Internationa Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting
policies adopted have been consistent|y applied to all the years presented

.

0
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3. Application of New and Revised International Fin

Standards (IFRS)

ancial Reporting

i. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue and effective in the year ended
30 June 2023. :
— »
(T itle Description T Lifective Date
IFRS 17 " The new standard establishes principles for | Effective for annual
Insurance the recognition, measurement, presentation | petiods beginning on or
Contracts and disclosure of insurance contracts after 1% January 2023.
(issued in May issued. It also requires similar principles to
2017) be applied to reinsurance contracts held and
investment contracts with discretionary
participation features issued. The objective
is to ensure that entities provide relevant
information in a way that faithtully
represents those contracts.
The Company does not issue insurarice
contracts. / The company is an insurance
company. The adoption of IFRS 17 has had
the following effects:
Xxx
Xoex
(amend as appropriate)
IAS 8- The amendments, applicable to annual | The amendments are
Accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January | effective  for annual
Policies, Errors, | 2023, introduce a definition of ‘accounting | reporting periods
and Estimatcs estimates’ and include other amendments to beginning on or after

Amendmenfs to
1AS | titled
Disclosure of

Accounting
Policies (issued

IAS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in

accounting policies from changes in

accounting estimates.

(entity 1o state the effect of amendments on
their financial statements for the year
ended.)

January 1, 2023.

The amendments, applicable to annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January
2023, require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting
policies.

The amendments
effective
periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2023.

arc

for annual

L

I




KENYA INDUSTRIAL ESTA 1ES

Annual Report and Financial §§3£q_;ggg}mt_kg'fg{[’_t_]ig_ycar ended June 30, 2023

Title

in February*
2021)

IAS 12 titled
Deferred Tax
Related to
Assets and
Liabilities
arising from a
Single
Transaction
(issued in May
2021)

R S e e

Amendments to | The amendments, ap

e

Description

Effective l)aff“““"/

(entity to state whether this has broughi
about changes 1o the accounting policies

disclosed) |

plicable to annual
periods beginning on or after Ist January
2023, narrowed the scope of the recognition
exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of [AS
{2 (recognition exemption) so that it go
longer applies to transactions that, on initia|
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible tempora ty differences,

The amendments are
cffective  for annual
periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2023,

e sttt

The Directors have assessed the applicable standards and amendments, Based on their
assessment of impact of application of the above, they do not expect that there will e o
significant impact on rhe company’s financial statements,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Application ot New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS)
ii. New and amended standards and inferpretations in issue but not yel effective in the year
ended 30 June 2023. P
Title Description Effective Date
Amendments  to | The amendments, applicable “to| The amendments are
IAS | titled | annual periods beginning on or after | effective  for  annual
Classification  of | st January 2024, clarify a criterion in | periods beginning on or
Liabilities as | IAS | for classifying a liability as after January 1. 2024.
Current or Non- | non-current: the requirement for an Barlier  application s
current (issued in | entity to have the rvight to defer permitted.
January 2020, | settlement of the liability for at least
amended in | 12 months after the reporting period
October 2022
Amendment to | The amendment, applicable to annual The amendments  are
[FRS 16 titled | periods beginning on or after Ist| effective  for  annual
Lease Liability in a | January 2024, requires a seller-lessee periods beginning on or
Sale and Leaseback | to  subsequently — measure lease | after January 1. 2024.
(issued in | liabilities arising from a leaseback in Earlier  application i
September 2022) a way that it does not recognise any permitted.
amount of the gain or loss.
Amendments  to | The amendments, applicable to| The amendments  are
IAS | titled Non- | annual periods beginning on or after effective for annual
current  Liabilities | st January 2024, improve the | periods beginning on or
with Covenants | information an entity provides about after January 1, 2024
(issued in October liabilities  arising ~ from  loan Earlier  application s
2022) arrangements for which an entity’s | permitted.
right to defer settlement of those
liabilities for at least twelve months
after the reporting period is subject to
the entity complying with conditions
L_,_ ] specified in the loan arrangement. | J

( The Directors do not plan to apply any of the above until they become effective. Based on their assessment of the potential

impact of application of the above, they do not expect that there will be a significant impact on the compuny's Jinancial

statements).
jiii.  Early adoplion of standards

Kenya Industrial Estates did not early adopt any new or amended standards in year 2022-2023
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4. Summary of Accounting Policies

The principle accounting policies adopted in the Preparation of these financial Statements are set
out below: 5
a)  Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in &
contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The entity

recognizes revenue when it transfers control of 3 product or service to a customer.

i) Revenue from the sale of goods and services is recognized in the year in which the
Company delivers products to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

o
=3
-

Grants from National Government are recognized in the year in which the Company
actually receives such grants. Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. Capital grants recejved and are meant for capital projects are
amortized and recognized as grants income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The amortized amount is transferred from GOK capital fund to retained earnings under the
Statement of Changes in Equity each year. This is in line with IAS 20. Also, the
Development/ Capital grants are recognized in the statement of financial position

iif)  Finance income comprises interest receivable from bank deposits and investment in
securities, and is recognized in profit or loss on a time proportion basis using the effective

interest rate method.

iv)  Dividend income is recognized in the income statement in the year in which the right to
receive the payment is established.

v)  Rental income s recognized in the income statement as it accrues using the effective

interest implicit in lease agreements,

vi)  Other income is recognized as it acerues,

10
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Accounting Policies

b) In-kind contributions
In-kind contributions are donations that are made to the company in the form of actual goods
and/or services rather than in money or cash terms. These donations may ‘include vehicles,
equipment or personnel services. Where the financial value received for in-kind contributions
can be reliably determined, the company includes such value in the statement of comprehensive
income both as revenue and as an expense in equal and opposite amounts; otherwise, the
contribution is not recorded.

¢)  Property, plant and equipment
All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less aceumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
Certain categories of property. plant and equipment arc subsequently carried at re-valued
amounts, being their fair value at the date of re-valuation less any subsequent accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

increases in the carrying amounts of assets arising from re-valuation are credited to other
comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases in the carrying amount of the
same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve account; all other decreases are charged
to profit or loss in the income statement. Gains and losses on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from the disposal with the net

carrying amount of the items, and are recognized in profit or loss in the income statement.

d)  Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment
Freehold land and capital work in progress are not depreciated. Capital work in progress relates
mainly to the cost of ongoing but incomplete works on buildings and other civil works and
installations.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognized in the income statement on a
straight-line basis to write down the cost of each asset or the re-valued amount to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The annual rates in use, as guided by National Treasury

policy on assets depreciation are:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary ofAccr)unting Policies

Buildings and cjyi] works 40 years or the unexpired lease perjod
Plant and machinery 12.5 years

Motor vehicles, inciuding motoy cycles 3 years

Computers and related equipment 5 years

Office equipment 8 years

Office furniture and fittings 10 years

A full year’s depreciation charge is recognized both in the year of asset purchase and in the year of
asset disposal.

Items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually for impairment. Where the carrying
amount of an asset ig assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss

is recognized so that the asset is written down immediately to jts estimated recoverable amount,

Amortization and impairment of intq ngible assets
Amortization is calculated on the straight-line basis ovey the estimated usefiy] life of the intangible
asset for use over ten years. All intangible assets are reviewed annua| ly for impairment. Where the
carrying amount of an intangible asset js assessed as greater than s estimated recoverable amount,
an impairment |oss is recognized so that the asset is written down innneclia(e]y to its estimated
recoverable amount.

Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes), is measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at fajr value. Gains oy
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or [oss in
the period in which they arise, Ap investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when (fe
investment property is Permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included

in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognized.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Contin ued)
Summary of Accounting Policies

£)

1)

)

)

Unquoted investments

Unquoted investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost eomprises direct
materials and, where applicable, direct labor costs and those overheads that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost method or First In First Out (FIFO). Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in
marketing, selling and distribution.

Trade and other receivables
‘frade and other receivables are recognized at amortized cost less allowances for any
uncollectible amounts. These are assessed for impairment ona continuing basis. An estimate is
made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad
debts are written off after all efforts at recovery have been exhausted.

Taxation
i) Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting
date in the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax
relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and not in the
statement of financial performance.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting

date in the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions

where appropriatc.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {'Contimlcd)
Summary of Accounting Policies
i) Deferred tax

Deferred tay is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tay bases
of assets and liabilities and thejy carrying amounts for financia| feporting purposes at the reporting
date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxabe temporary differences, €xeept in respect
of taxable temporary d ifferences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates an
interests in Joint ventures. when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it ig probable that the temporary dj fferences i) not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets are recognized for g deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unuseq tax credits and any unused tax losges. Deferred tax assels are recognized to the
extent that it s probable that taxable profit wijj be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carpy forward of tnused tax credits ang unused tax losses can pe
utilized, except in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
controlled entities, associates and interests in Jjoint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized
only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences wil| reverse in the foreseeah|c

future and taxable profit wij[ pe available againgt which the temporary differences can pe utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed gt each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probabje that sufficient taxable profit wil] pe available to allow g]] or parf
of the deferred tax asset to be yij lized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
'eporting date and are recognized (o the extent that it hag become probable that futyre taxable
profits will allow the deferred ay asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities ape
measured at the tax rtates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset jg realized or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacte
at the Ir'eporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deficit is recognized outside surplus or
deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction in et assets,
Deferred tax assets and deferred tay | iabilities are offset if a legally e forceable right exists to sor
off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same

taxable entity and the same taxation authority,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Accounting Policies

k)

D

m)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets. which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of _Eime to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. To the extent that variable rate borrowings
are used to finance a qualifying asset and are hedged in an effective cash flow hedge of interest
rate risk, the effective portion of the derivative is recognized in other comprehensive income
and reclassified to profit or loss when the qualifying asset impacts profit or loss. To the extent
that fixed rate borrowings are used to finance a qualifying asset and are hedged in an effective
fair value hedge of interest rate risk, the capitalized borrowing costs reflect the hedged interest
rate. Investment income carned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on
call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes
in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at
various Commercial Banks at the end of the reporting period. For the purposes of these
financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and
advances to authorized public officers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or
accounted for at the end of the financial yeat.

Borrowings

[nterest bearing loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at fair value being received, net of
issue costs associated with the borrowing. Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any issuc¢ cost and any discount or premium on settlement. Finance charges, including
premiums payable of settlement or redemption are accounted for on accrual basis and are
added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the
period in which they arise. Loan interest accruing during the construction of a project is

capitalized as part of the cost of the project.

15
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n)

0)

p)

qQ)

&

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are carried at amortized cost, which is

- measured at the fair value of contractual value of the consideration to be paid in future in

respect of goods and services supplied, whether billed to the entity or not, less any payments
made to the suppliers. ’

Retirement benefit obligations

The company operates a defined contribution scheme for all full-time employees from July 1,
2011. The scheme is administered by an in-house team and is funded by contributions from

both the company and its employees.

The company also contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is
a defined contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Act. The
company’s obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from
time to time and is currently at Kshs.200 per employee per month. With effect from F ebruary
2023, employees contribute 6% of basic pay capped to a maximum of Kshs. 1,080 and the
employer matches the amount.

Provision for staff leave pay

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave are recognized as they accrue at the employees. At
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave at the reporting date.

Exchange rate differences

The accounting records are maintained in the functional currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, Kenya Shillings. Transactions in foreign currencies
during the year/period are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Any
foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

16
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Accounting Policies

r) Budget information

The original budget for FY 2022-2023 was approved by the National Assembly Subsequent
revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with
specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added
to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective approvals in order to
conclude the final budget

The entity’s budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure
disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis
using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial
performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial
statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation
to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts,
prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to
amounts in the financial statements are also made for differences in the formats and
classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and the
approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial

performance has been presented under section xxx of these financial statements.

$) Service concession arrangements

The Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in
determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular,
where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity recognizes that asset
when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator must provide together
with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case of assets other
than "whole-of-life’ assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise
— any significant residual interest in the asset at the end of the arrangement. Any assets so
recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized,
the Entity also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or

received.

94
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Con tinues)

t)  Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial vear have been amended or
o o ,

reconfigured to conform (o the required changes in presentation.

u) Subsequent events
There have been no evenis subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on

the financial statements for the year ended June 30,2023,

S. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material ad

justment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected

in future periods.

a)  Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
The Entity based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Hoy ever, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control

of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

b)  Useful lives and residual values
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future usc and value from disposal:
* The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity
* The nature of the asset. ifs susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and
processes
* The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed

* Availability of funding to replace the assets

18
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continues)

¢) Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note xxx.
»
Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the

effect is material.

1. Provision for Loans
The organization applies the banking regulations issued by the Central Bank on risk
classification for loans and provisioning for bad and doubtful loans, using prudential

guidelines as shown in table below:

Category | Classification ~__ Provisioning

A Normal class (0-30 days) general provision of 1% of loan balance
B ] Watch class (31-90 days) general provision of 2% of loan balance

| C Sub-standard class (91-180 days) 20% of loan balance less suspended interest
D Doubtful class (181-365 days) 100% of loan balance less suspended interest i
B Loss class (365 days) 100% of loan balance less security

[1. Impairment Losses

At the end of cach reporting period, the Corporation reviews the catrying amounts of its
financial assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event’) and that the loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of

financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

[f any such indication exists. the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Corporation estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset

belongs.
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Notes to the Financial Statemen ts (Continues)

IIL  Provision for Ex-staff Im prests and Advances

The company makes estimates of doubtfy| receivables in relation to ex-staff imprest and
advances and makes provision based on the estimates, Bad debts in relation to ex-~staff and

advances are written off after all efforts at recovery have been exhausted,

V. Impairment Losses on Loans and Advances

The estimation of potential credit jogses is inherently uncertain and depends upon many
factors, including general  cconomic conditions, changes in individual customers’
circumstances, structural changes within industries that alter competitive positions and other
external factors such gs fegal and regulatory requirements, Impairment s measured for alj
accounts that are identified asnon-performing. Al relevant considerations that have a bearing
on the expected future cash flows are taken into account which include but not limited to

future business Prospects for the customer and realizable valye of security,

Subjectivejudgements are made in this process of cash flow determ ination both in valye and
timing and may vary from one person to another. Judgements may also change with time as

new information becomes available.

The company review its loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether an
allowance for impairment should be recognized in profit or loss. Judgement js required in the
estimation of the amount and timing of futyre cash flows whep determining the level of

allowance required. Such estimates are based on assumptions on a numpey of factors,

V. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over s useful life taking into consideration
residual valyes, Critical estimates are made by management in dctermining the depreciation

rates based on reasonable estimates of the usetul life of the assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continues)

VI.  Going Concern
The Board of Directors and Management have evaluated the going concern status of the
company and have no reason to believe the company will not be in operation in the next
financial year because the company is funded by the Government through budgetary
allocations. In making this judgement the directors and management have made reasonable

estimates and judgement on the budgetary allocation expected from government.

VII.  Related Parties
In the normal course of business, the company has entered into transactions with related

parties. The related party transactions are at arm’s length.

S8
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6. Revenue from contract with customers

l Description - e

Interest income from loans
Total

143,58%

172,829

7. Grants from National Government
e S R - S
L. 2023 202 2 |
Description e -
e - Kshs 00’ Kshs’()()(}’
Recurrent grants received 272,960 280,24 0

Capital grants rea] ized (qu: noto bciow) v 255,230 604,634
l Total 528,19 884,874
e i =1 8843

Amount Amount
recognized deferred under
in the deferred

I Amount
recognised in
capital fund.

Name of the
Entity sending
the grant

Kshs 000’ Kshs 000

Statement of income K8hs’000°
Comprehensi | KShs*000? ‘
ve Income }
. KShs’OO__Q;_ N _____m__‘ﬁ__“ o
Ministry of
Industrialization/
State g
272,960 ’ 255,230 272,960 280,240
Department
e .—’\__.__~ e -ﬁf-—.__.——_._.-—\_*_ e e
272,960 , 255,230 272,960 280,240

Kshs*000°
36,765

Kshs’OOOT
33,579 |

912 |
34,491 |

———
anl\s and mmmml ! ing ,tllulmns

o
(]
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9, Other Income
Description — 2025 2022
Kshs’000° Kshs’000°
Sale of Tender Documents 6 20
Commissions and charges 5,738 4,091
_gusincss Development Services Income 34,411 18.761
WM—iscellaneous Rcceipisw 5,550 10,202
Rental Income 59,027 64,452
Jrow I N0
10. Administration Costs
Description il o
Kshs’000° Kshs?000°
Staff costs ( Note (10a) - 297,136 297,275
Directors’ emoluments 10,390 20,728
Electricity and water 2,930 T 3839
Communication services and supplies 15,862 14,757
Transportation, travelling and subsistence 29,222 22,945
Advertising, printing, stationery and photocopying 13,285 11,842
Rent expenses ) 3,259 4,853
Staff training expenses 5,864 11,948
Hospitality supplies and services 160 351
Insurance costs 10,178 9,462
Bank charges and commissions 1,844 1,702
Office and general supplies and services 6,980 6,722
Auditors’ remuneration 600 600
Legal fees 4,916 4,053
Consultancy fees o - 338 604—
Repairs and maintenan;:— _ T 3,283 3,805
mion for bad and doubtful debts 24,919 24,683
 Depreciation 31,973 35,181
Amortization 3,969 4,258
| Other Operating Expenses T 29,884 18,36_3—
| Total 496,992 497911

[\]
[¥%]
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

10¢a) Staff Costs —

- 2023 2022
Description e T i,
. Kshs’000? » Kshs’OO()’
S S . —
Salaries and allowances of per manent e my oncc 243 223
Nl i ———— 2
Wageq of temporary employwk 83?
Medical j Imsurance schemes 25,712
Employer’s contributions to national social 5ecunw T 1189
schemes ’
—— e
Employer’s contubutlom to pumon ' scheme 20,136
Leave pay 2,291
Gratuity provisions 1,488
. — - o
Fringe benefit tay 266
Staff welfare -
Total 297,136
The average number of employces at (he end of the year .
was:
Permanent employees — nmndgumm 17
Permanent employees — unjon- %ablc 188
Temporar Y and contracted employees 2
e e
Total 207

_\-\h-__._hw‘__ﬁ_‘.___ e

11. Selling and Distribution Costs

\,“~___R._\_.‘_N_\~_1|—\\_~_.

.. 2023
Description — T
j Kshs’ 000’
and Promotiona] ex 5

24
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12, Operating profit/ (Loss)

e

Description B ] 2023
Kshs’000° Kshs’000’
chm'ging/(crcditing): o
Staff Costs (Note 10a) - _ﬂj—ém,m) (297.275) |
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (31,973) (35,181)
Amortization of right of use of Assets (leasehold land) ) (3,969) (4,258)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts F(24,91 9 (24,683)
Directm#'s’ exnolulnents:—_fe—e} o (10,390) (20,728)
Auditaors’ remuneration - cur;'cnt year fees ) — (600) (600£§
Other Administrative expenses ’_—(, 132,113) (120,776)
Government recurrent grant ) 1 272,960 280,24(—;
Interest receivable (Notg(_i)_ o - B _112_,229 143,585—
Ret_xt receivable (Note i)) - - 1 _—jf),O?f/‘ 64,452
—F_i;l—‘cmce income (Note i:ﬂ - T 31587 34,491
Other income (Note 9) 45,705 33,074

e ——— o
87,008 | 52,341

13. Income Tax Expcnsc/(Credit)

e

(a) Income tax charge/ credit

- |

Description

]
Current taxation based on the adjusted Profit for the year at
30%

Cl;ru;mrior Year Undet/(Over) provision
Current year del’cx@ tax charge

prior Year Under-provision for deferred tax
i il e i
Total

(3]
U
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Notes to the Financial Statemen ts {{Jmu‘inucd)

(b) Reconciliation of fax expense/ (credit) to the expected tax based on Accounting profis

2023
Description
Kshs’ 000’
I Profit before taxation
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 30%

Prior Year U nder-Provision

........ e B

Tax effects of EXpenses not deductible for ay purposes

(26,102

S over

Tax effects of income noft taxable

—
| Tax effects of excess capital allowances
J Depreciation/Amox’tization

Deferred tax Prior Year Over-Provision

Total

14. Earnings Per Share

The earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit after tax of Ishs.81 ,494,000 (202 1/2022):
Kshs. 48,884,000) by the average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of 4,013,865
(2021/2022): 4.013.865). There were not dilutive or potentially dilutive ordinary share as at the

reporting date,

15. Dividend per Share

Proposed dividends arc accounted for as g Separate component of equity until they have beep ratified
and declared at the relevant Annual General Meeting (AGM). At the AGM to be held before the end
0 2023, no dividend i, respect of the year ended June 30, 2023 is to be Proposed just like year 2022

when no dividend was proposed.



o €8c101
%01 - sSumly pue 2N g
%07 €E9°6¢ yuawdinbe psiefa1 pue sivpndwod
%407 0S.°19 $2j0A0 10j011 SUIPNJOUL ‘SAOIYRA J0ION
%S 71 - juewidinbe 30110
=Rl uonenjeA
uoneroaidap 101500
[enuuYy
JRLLION
:pajeroaidap AJjny a1e Jey) sl FUIMO[]0] 21 2pn{oul wewdinba pue weid ‘Kuredolad
W\;"Nm\. 060°0S€ S68°67 BLS¥T STT81 EEXE [ 6o¥°zeeE | €707 D€ 2UNf Y |
SANTYA M00d k%
LLT'69¢ - 079°6€ y6E'LE Ivo°LE 89¢'T11 FST TV €707 ‘g 2UnL 1V
€L6'TE - 8LT1 8¢T’] 8TL1 111 8I¥°€Cl Teak 2y} 10) 231RYD
YOE'LEE - Tre8e 951°9¢ €16°6¢ LS0'86 9¢8'8Z1 20T ‘1 AInf 1V
NOILVIOZUdHd
OLF IST'Y 060°9S€ S1S°69 7L6°19 998°SS yoe'eel STLYLY €707 ‘pEuUNL Iy
e - - - - - - i syuounsnipy
1061 ¥ T0< y6¥ SOI°1 E - , SUOLIPPY
6956711 060°95¢€ €17°69 8LY'19 19L°%S ¥0£cel CTLYLY 7207 ‘1 A
NOILYQTVA YO 1S0D
| 000.5USM 0005483 000.SUsH 000.5USH 000.5Us 000.5UsH 000.5USM
qYL1OL ssaasoad ymemdinbs | s3umy yusuwidinba $2]940 A0y01 33 RO L
1 MIoM 210 29 2anjIuing pajepRl ‘Supnpul 1A psBuipjing £t
Ended ® s1andwo) | ‘SIPOIYRA 1030\

juswdinby pue jueld <Kyaadoag (®) ‘91

(panupuo))) SHUIWANEIS JBIIUBUL] 21) 03 8330\

€70t

‘¢ 2unyp papu JE2L 1) 10] SHWIUWNEIS Jenpugnly puE J0day [ENUTY

SHIV.IST TVTILSIANT VAN



220z ‘og dunp 1y |
\ SINTVA MOOF LaN |
ﬁ 9€8°871 220z ‘o¢ aunr 3y |
| [TET | OPLCT /;
_ | 960°¢I T 1202 "1 Ainr 1y |
NOLLVIDOMIdaq |
T20T “0¢ aunp 3y
Stuawsnfpy |
n SuonIppy

" !

1T0Z °1 Ainr 1y
- le0T’

B , . | ‘ NOLLVOTYA 4O 1S0D |
000.5ysy | 000.5ysy] 000.54s3f 000.5ysy 000 sysyy ‘ 000.sysyy |
ssatgoad | Juswdmba | s5ungy 1uswdinha S3[IA3 Joj0Ww SO [IALD __
UL Y104 | RO | W sanwing pajepaa ‘Surpnpour WsSuipping 7207

.‘ . -
jeyden) ¥ swndwoy ‘SaaryaA

do10p48
(penuguoyy) tuswdinby pug Juelq ‘Arradog

(panunuony) SjusuaIe)g feroueLy 343 03 sajop

!/l///[/’f’f
—_—

, €T0T dung ,o¢ popus seas Y} 10y spuswmaye)g [ERueuLf pue 1iodoy ren uuy
SHLVIST TVIIISNaNT VANTY



KENYA INDUSTRIAL ESTA TES
_{\nnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30M nne__g()?.:ﬁ

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

16. (b)Property, Plant a nd Equipment

Property, plant and equipment include the following items that are fully depreciated:

r Normal Annual |
T L Cost or Valuation | Depreciation Charge
o - ~_________Kshs’()OO Kshs’000
Office Equipment ;e . 12.5%
Motor vehicles, including motor ¢ cles n o 6L750 20%
Computers & Related Equipment B 39,633 20%
_Furniture & F ittings - [ - | 10%

101,383 -

16. (¢) Land without Title Documents

The company has 47 picces of land measuring 47.9928 hectares which have no title documents. These are
shown in annexure V1. The company is pursuing the National Land Commission for the issuance of the
title documents.

i7. intangible Assets

T ' 2023 2022

Description e
Kshs’000” Kshs’000’
At July 1 } _w_” 48,126 48,126
Additions B 5 ) -
) (-) ()
48,126 48,126

Amortization
At July !
Charge For The Year

Disposals

{mpairment Loss
At June 30
Net Book Value

At June 30 9,496 9,496

NOTES: The intangible Assets relate to computer software

29
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cunizinucd)
18. Investment Property

—

Description

Opening Valuation

e i e

Movements During The 3’03_.!‘ e
Additions

Disposals
Fair Value Gains/(Losscs)

998,585 |

Closing Valuation
SOt

l Dc}n‘eciatiou (It At Cost) -
At July 1

Charge For The Year
Disposals
Imp_ai-rment Loss
At June 30

Net Book Value

19. Right of use assets

Description ; —— — A

Opening Valuation

Movements During mcnr
Additions

Disposals

Fair Valye Gains/(Losses)

Closing Valuation

Depreciation (If At Cost)
At July 1

Charge For The Year
Disposals
Impairment [oss
At June 30

Net Book Value

At June 30 T i
ight of oo e — 09
Note: Right of use assets refors to Leasehold land held by the company.,
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Notes fo the Financial Statements (Coutinued)

20. Unquoted Investments
T [ 2023 2022
Deseription
Kshs’000° * Kshs?000’
Cost
At July 1 11,200 11,200
(11,200) (11,200)

Less provisions

At June 30 B

¢ the unquoted investment relates to investment of 440,000 non-cumulative prefe

each and 120,000 ordinary shares of Kshs.20 each at Consolidated Bank of Kenya Lid.

rence shares of Kshs.20

21, Inveniories
2023 2022
Deseription e — iy
Kshs?000° Kshs’ 0007
Stationery and general stores 7,007 6,554
Less: Impairment of Stock (164) (164)
Total 6,843 6,390
22. Trade and Other Receivables
, o 2023 2022
Description
Kshs’000° Kshs’ 000’
Trade Receivables 325,829 366,173
Staff receivables -Note 21(b) 3,749 3,687
Gross Trade and Other Receivables 329,578 369,860
Provision for Bad And Doubtful Receivable - (149,784) (149,851)
Ll‘_let Trade and Other Receivables T 179,794 220,009
22(a). Trade Receivables
o 2023 2022
Description
Kshs’ 0007 Kshs’000°
Gross Trade Receivables 329,578 369,860
Provision for Doubtful Receivables (149,784) (149,851)
Net Trade Receivables 179,794 220,009
ageing analysis of gross Trade Receivables
Less than 30 Days 130,287 161,166
Between 31 and 60 Days 1.688 15,554
Between 61 and 90 Days 846 1,066
Between 91 and 120 Days 1,396 1,544 -
Over 120 Days ’ 195,361 190,530
]_;l‘iml _L_k o _329,578 369,860
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Notes to the Financiai Statements (Cm)tinued)

22(b). Trade Receivables
(_)-... —— reCeivables

Description

Kshs’000° Kshs’000°
_.\__\'\“_h""‘"'“’“w’ T T e —— P \".‘\“‘
Staff advances and imprest 3,749 3,687

Provision for staff advances and impresi T -(2,528) (2,52_8‘)w

At the end of the )’Cf;l_'
—_—

1,159

Gross loans

Interest suspended

e

(81,107) (51,678
General provision 6,718
fal i L S, it
Total 1,979,467
——— ;

1,568,046
__ 1,968,046

24, Staff Receivables
. 2022
Description Kshs'000° |

Interest suspended
Specific provisions

Description

Cash at bank
Cash in hand

1,754,463
656

1,740,467 1,755,119
The bulk of the cash at bank was helc-lﬁéﬂléndard Chartered Bank Kenya Limited and Kenya Commercial
Bank. These are the main company’s bankers including National Bank of Kenya Limited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Detailed analysis of the cash and cash equivalents

Deseription 2023 2022
Current Account
ﬂ Financial institution Kshs’000° » Kshs’(00°
Standard Chartered Bank o 1,213,211 1,353,309
Nlienya Commercial Bank Ltd 504,398 321,821
National Bank of Kenya 21,540 78,671
Co-operative Bank of Kenya 168 168
M-pesa 494 494
Cash in hand 656 656
Grand Total 1,740,467 1,755,119
Detailed analysis of bank and account numbers are provided on appendix V
26. Ordinary Share Capital
Description 2023 2022
) Kshs’000° Kshs’000”
Authorized: |
10,000,000 ordinary shares of Kshs.20 par value each 200,000 200,000
Issued and Fully paid:
4,013,865 ordinary shares of Kshs.20 par value each 80,277 80,277
27. Reserves
Description e 4804
Kshs’000’ Kshs’000°
Capital Reserves 22,523 22,525
Disposal of sheds 68,637 68,637
GOK Irredeemable Loans 190,257 190,257
Revaluation Reserves 838,405 838,405
Grants 6,703,676 6,448,446
GOK Loan write offs 1,210,000 1,210,000
Retained Earnings (3,268,413) (3,343,243)
L 5,765,085 5,435,025

(U]

(OS]
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Notes To The Financiai Statements (Cm:i’iuuc(l)

28. Revaluation Reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of certajn items of property, plant and equipment.
Asindicated in the Statement of Changes in Equity, this is stated after transfer of excess depreciation
net of related deferred tax Lo retained carnings, Revaluation surpluses are not distributable,

29, Fair Value Adjustment Reserve

The fair valuye adjustment reserve arises on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets,
principally the marketable seciritics, When a financial asset is sold, the portion of the reserve that
relates to that asset is reduced from the fair value adjustment reserve and is recognised in profit o
loss. Where 3 financial asset is impaired, the portion of the resepye that relates to that asset is
recognised in profit or loss.

30, Retained Eq ruings

The retained earnings represent amounts available for distribution to the entity’s shareholders,

Undistributed retained earnings are utilised to finance the entity’s business activities,

31. Borrowings

——— e e i

e S

2023 2022
Description .
Kshs’000° Kshs’000> |

—
1) External l)orrowings

of the year

s
152.864 152,864 |

Balance at beginning

o
ance at end of the year 152,864 152,864
ance at beginning of i'h‘C‘,—;CEH'Z uuuuuuuu 65,654

B () ()
65,654 65,65

Balance at end of the period- domestie ™ —__ e
| 218,518 218,518

and external borrowmgs € =g+h
———— — ] —_

[¥%)
N
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

The analyses of both external and domestic borrowings are as follows:

o T 2023 2022 |

Description e
KShs’000’ KShs’ 000’ J
fxternal borrowings . J
External bomow s . —

Dollar denominated loan from B
. e 152,864 152,864
x organization
Domestic borrowings
Kenya shilling loan from Youth Enterprise Fund 1,709 1,709
Kenya shilling loan from GOK 63,945 63,945
e e ———]
Total balance at end of the year _-mi__z 18,51 §_ 21 8,_5_} _8_

32. Deferred Tax Liability
Deferred tax is calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using the enacted tax raie,

currently 30%. The net deferred tax liability at year end is attributable to the following items:

o 2023 2022 |

Description -
Kshs’000° Kshs’ 000’

35,608 | 735,608
Unrealised exchange gains/(Losses) - -
mlzcvaluation surplus b - -
) ()
-) )
Net deferred tax liability 35,608 35,608

as follows:

The movement on the deferred tax account is

2022
Kshs’000’

Description

_._.___’_———-—-/——

[
Balance at beginning of the year

I et

Credit to revaluation reserve

s

Under Provision in Prior Year

Income Statement Charge/(Credit)

35,608

Balance at end of the year 35,608




KENYA IND USTRIAL ESTATES
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 39t June 2023
—————— 1 a0d Fimancial ——— 2 10T the bt il

i

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cunténucd)

33. Trade and Other Payabies

Kshs’000°
8,701

-_\\\—\__

46,083

e

34, Retirement Benefit Obligations

The company also contributes to the statutory Nationa] Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a defined

contribution scheme registered under (he National Socjaj Security Act. The company’s obligation under the

scheme is limited 0 specific coniributions legislated from fime to time and is currently at Kghs, 1,080.00

per employee per month. Other thay NSSF the Company also has a defj

ned contribution scheme operated
by Kenya Industrial Estates Limited staff tetirement benefit scheme

and Kenya Industrial Estates Limited

Staff provident fund. Employees coniribute 8% while employers contribyte 16% of basic salary. Employer

contributions are recognized as expenses in the Statement of Financial Performance within the period they

are incurred.

35. Provisions

——— e
Leave Pay
Description Provisions
2022

Kshs’00g°
5.246

e year

Additional provisions

Provision for annual leave pay is based on services rendered

by full-time employees up to the end of the
year.
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36. Notes to the gtatement of Cash Flows

o 2023
Description S o
Kshs’000’

(8) Reconciliation Of Operating Profit/(Loss) To Cash ,
B Ge_nenwgfe_d_ln) Operations

profit or Loss before tax 87,008
e e e i

Depreciation 31,973

Amortization - 3,969

; zaton. . . okt

Rent Income (59,027)

- e — IR s
Other [ncome (45,705)
[nterest Income (173,651)

e e
Provisions 24,919
e
Interest Received (36,765)
T e I—
Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital changes (167,279)
§) betorr
__,_,_,,_-—'—,,,__._,_——«——___,___—4_--_ S
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories | (453
e e R —
(lncrease’)/Decx'ease in Trade and Other Receivables 40,215
[ncrease/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables (10,229)
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Staff Leave Pay -
-_-_________-——”‘_____.—_/‘_i___.
Advances to Customers (992,064)

825,065
(304,745)

vl e g
Collections from Loans, Rent, Mortgage and Other Incomc

Cash Generated from/(used In) operations
e

I

(b) Analysis of Cash and Cash equivalent

Cash At Bank 1,739,811

Cash In Hand 656
g - [ ol

Balance At End Of The Year 1,740,467

c) Disclosure on changes in Financing Cash flow: -

52,341

T (144,497)

A

et e e

2022
Kshs’000°

35,181

4258
(64,452)
(33,074)

(165,564)

3,659

e e}

(681,937)
720,659
(282,358)

1. GOK Grant- This is grant from National Government given to support the company’s development

activities. The grant is not refundable.

37
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37. Related Party Disclosuyres

Government of Kenya

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the entity, holding 100, of the entify’s equity
interest, The Government of Kenya has provided fuf] guarantees to al| long-term Ienders of the entity, both
domestic and external.

Other related Pparties inclyde:

i) The Parent Ministry
i) Government Agencies

iii) Government of Kenya
iv) County Governmengs
V) Key managemenq

vi) Board of dj rectors

Transactions with related parties
\\\_\_\‘\me«wh_\mx

Description

‘K—;hs’(ﬁg’m l

Kshs’000

SN

———

a) Sales to related parties

_—\\__\.-“~

Rent income from govt, agencies

Tota} 7 .

_\\\..ﬁ_\_____. e e =3

b) Purchases from related parties
Purchases of electricity from KPLC

A

Purchase of water {rom government
Total

¢} Gi

Grants from national

\\_.__...\M‘._,__ R

‘ants from the government

government

884,874 |
884,874

e
ageineit

R S il ——— ]

T et T
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38. Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Contingent Assets

IR =

e

2022
Kshs’000’

]

191,000 ‘ 191,000 |
191,000 } 191,0001

There is disputed ownership of staff houses in Eldoret where titles were obtained fraudulently. The company
went to court and obtained a favourable judgement. The parties however, appealed against the judgement
but the company also obtained a favourable judgement. The property is valued at Ksh.191M and the
company is in the process of taking possession. There are also other parcels of land whose ownership is in

dispute. These have been forwarded to National Land Commission.

Contingent Liabilitics

Description

Contingent Liabilities

Bank overdraft

dudsiiart a NN
Legal claims against the company

The company may b¢ required to pay interest on the Bank Overdraft of Kshs.3.422 million with
Continental Bank. The inierest is expected to accrue from the date the Bank was placed under official
Receivership. However, assurance in writing had been given that the interest charged in excess of the interest

receivable from deposits will be borne by the Continental Credit Finance these were related Institutions.

Corporation Tax

This relate to claim by KRA for payment of tax arrears for period 1994 to 2014. The claim relates to interest
and penalties for the said period and the company has applied to Kenya Revenue Authority (KRA) for
waiver.

The matter is under consideration by KRA. The liability amounted to Kshs. 140.20 Million as at 30/06/2023.

Court Cases
There are {wo on-going court cases in relation to disputed land ownership between the company and other

parties and one arbitration matter in relation to a contract. The cases are on-going.

39



KENYA IND USTRIAL EST4 TES

‘ - ¥ : af s fe Foue e o th :
Annual Repor t and Financiga} Staicm_ux!s for the year ended 30" June 2023

o S——

Notes To The Financia} Statements (C:m(‘inucd)

39,

Financial Rjsi Management

The entity’s activities Expose it to a variety of financiaj risks including credit and liquidity risks and
effects of changes in foreign currency. The company’s overa|| risk management programime focyses
on unpredictability of changes in the business environment apg seeks to minimise the potentia}
adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setling acceptable levels of risk. The com bany does
not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit jg only extended to customers with
an established credit history,

The company’s financial risk Mmanagement objectives and policies are detailed below:

(i) Credit risk

The entity hag eXposure to credif rigf_ which is the risk that a counterparty will pe unable to pay
amounts in full whey due. Credit rjsk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks,
as well as trade and other receivableg and available-for-sale financial investments,

Management assesses the crejt quality of cach customer, taking into account its financial position,
Past experience and other factoys, Individual rigk limits are set based on internal or external
assessment in accordance with Jimits set by the directors, The amounts presented in the statemeny of
financial position are net of allowances for doubtfy] receivables, estimated by the company’s
Mmanagement based o prior experience and their assessment of the current economjc environment,

The carryin g amount of financia| assets recorded in the financial statements reépresenting the entity’s

maximum eXposure to credit risi without taking account of the value of any collatera| obtained s

made up as fo| lows;

——

Fully
performing
Kshs’00¢’

Past due
Kshs’00¢’

Impaired
Kshs’000°

amount

Kshs’000°

Receivables from non-
exchange transactions

B

Receivables from non-

exchange transactions

T |.754.463 | :
o 1.596.964 -
L 3,721,2 161,166 ( 18,164 190,530
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Past due but not Impaired Loans

Past due but not impaired loans are those for which contractual interest o Principal Paymentis ape
past due, but the company believes that impairment js notappropriate on the basis of stage collection

of amounts owed by the company. As at 3¢ June, the classifications of past due but not impaired
and past due and ; mpaired were a5 follows:

—————— —
‘ Loans to customers

e

Not Past due ang not Impaired

——

2022
Ksh’ 090>

—— 07 UV

1,325,217 1,047,377
Past Due and Impaired 342,962

Past Due and Impaired

e
Impairment Allowance
s

e

Total

i) Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risic management rests wih the entity’s directors, who p

ave
builtan appropriate liquidity risk Management framework

for the management of the entity’s shop.

medium apd long-term Funding and liquidity management requirements, The entity m

anages
liquidity ris} through continuons Mmonitoring of forecasts an

d actual cagh flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by (he company under non-derivative fip

ancial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturitjes

at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in

the table are the contractyal undiscounted cash flows. Balances dye within 12 months cqual their

carrying balances, as the impact of discounring is not significant.

’ Less than 1 }— Between 123 Over 5
I month months months
| Tonth

| Kshs’000°

. N i

At 30 June 2022 -

Trade payables 12,53 113,548
P s TS et T —

Borrowings ; 218.51¢ 218,518

332,066 |
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(iii) Market visk

The board has put in place an internal Audit function and Risk Management Department to assist it
in assessing the risk faced by the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and
effectiveness of its internal accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and
foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity’s income or the value of its holding of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the returi. Overall responsibility for
managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The company’s Risk Management Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committee)
and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the entity’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages

and measures the risk.

a) Foreign currency risk

The company has no exposure to foreign currency risk because of the nature of its business.

b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the company’s financial condition may be adversely affected as a
result of changes in the interest rate levels. The company takes on exposure to the effect of
fluctuation in prevailing levels of market interest rate on both fair value and cash tlow risk. The
company holds interest bearing assets in form of loans to customers. The Board has assessed the
interest rate risk and does not foresee any changes in the market that may adversely affect the

company’s cash flow. This is because the company interest rate regime is fairly stable.

¢) Capital Risk Management
The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. The company’s capital structure comprises of the following

funds

o
V)
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Notes to the Financiai Statements ({fiontiuuc(i)

2027 |

2023
Kshs’000’
—

i i S SRS

share capital | 277

Capital reserve 22,523
B S S —— J
Dis posal-of sheds 68,637 |
e S —— 08,637

GOK Trredeemable loans

. 190,257 f

; 838,405
e — Lt 838405 |

Retained earnings S 3,_343.243)_ {
Mﬁ'_&\‘mﬂ_;,.,_Nm,_w‘,__w e~ LN _— 2a"‘3£i‘_‘l~)

Total borrowings

Less: cash and bank balances o
Net debt/(excess cash and cash
equivalents)

40. Incorporation

The company is incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan Comparnies Act and is domicifed in
Kenya

41. Events after the Report‘iug Period

There were o material adjusting and nop- adjusting events after the reporting period,

42, Currcncy
The Financia] Statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

44
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